
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR
BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND
THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’
CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2017 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of information on the recent
activities of Gila Community College. 
(Stephen Cullen)

Presented

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
use of the State of Arizona Procurement Office
Contract No. ADSPO16-00005912 with Atwell
whereby the consultant will provide expansion
services for the Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa
Landfill Expansion.  (James Menlove/Steve
Sanders)

Approved

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
use of the State of Arizona Procurement Office
Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane
Builders, Inc. for the construction of interior
improvements, exterior improvements and all
associated facets of remodel on the Globe
Courthouse building in the amount of
$369,880.20 with estimated completion 60
days from the date of the "Notice to Proceed"
issued by the County to SD Crane Builders,
Inc.  (James Menlove/Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any  



4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS17-133182) between the Arizona
Department of Health Services and the Gila
County Health and Emergency Management
Division for $24,029.43 in order to provide
continued public health emergency
preparedness services.

Approved

 

B.   Approval to appoint Robert Solberg to the
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System
(PSPRS) Local Board of Directors for the term
beginning on March 21, 2017, through
December 31, 2020; and acknowledgment of
the election of Johnny Holmes to said Local
Board for the term beginning on February 7,
2017, through December 31, 2020.

Approved

 

C.   Acknowledgment of Karol Clark's resignation
from the Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of
Directors and the appointment of Peter
Elenius to fulfill Mrs. Clark's unexpired term,
effective December 14, 2016, through
December 31, 2016, and to acknowledge the
reappointment of Peter Elenius' term
beginning January 18, 2016, and ending
December 31, 2020.

Acknowledged

 

D.   Acknowledgement of the January 2017
monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the February 2017
monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 



 

F.   Acknowledgment of the February 2017
monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the February 2017
monthly departmental activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's
Office.

Acknowledged

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the February 2017
monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk
of the Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the February 2017
monthly activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office.

Acknowledged

 

J.   Approval of the March 7, 2017, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

K.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the week of February 13, 2017,
through February 17, 2017; and February 20,
2017, through February 24, 2017.

Acknowledged

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments



 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231
AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH
THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL
ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-4224     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the
Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Update on recent activities of Gila Community College

Background Information
Dr. Stephen Cullen, District Senior Dean of Gila Community College, has
made a request to provide a presentation to the Board of Supervisors
regarding the recent activities of the College.

Evaluation
It would beneficial for the Board to be provided an update on the recent
activities of Gila Community College to include the Globe Campus, San
Carlos Campus and the Payson Campus.

Conclusion
It would be advantageous for the Board and the public to receive an
update on College activities.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information on the recent activities of Gila Community
College.  (Stephen Cullen)

Attachments
GCC Presentations



2016/2017 



Gila County Provisional Community College 

Globe ~ Payson 

Gila Community College has campuses in Globe and Payson. Gila Community College is a 

provisional community college and plays a vital role in the economic development of Gila 

County and the surrounding rural areas. The college is paramount in attracting new industry 

to the area. The college has strong support from the community. 

 
 

STUDENTS 

Gila Community College’s full-time students equivalent (FTSE) was 672 for the 2015/2016 

academic year.  

Gila Community College is providing postsecondary educational services to over 1,166 

students in Gila County this spring 2017 semester. 
 

 

 



Dr. Stephen Cullen, Senior Dean 

Patricia Burke, Gila Pueblo Campus Dean 

Pamela Butterfield, Payson Campus Dean 

Gila Community College 2017 Governing Board 
   Jay Spehar, President 

  Janet Brocker, Secretary 

  Samuel I. Moorhead 

Kurt Knauss 

Jennifer White 
    

Gila Community College Administration  



Gila Community College 
State Funding FY 2004 - FY 2016 

Fiscal Year: FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 

Funding  $               -     $               -     $   335,700   $   359,800   $   753,900   $   713,000   $   658,400   $   658,400   $   428,100  
 $       
410,000  

 $       
370,700  

 $        
346,300  

 $        
368,100  

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

Gila Community College 
State Funding through FY 2016 

Funding



70% 

24% 

6% 

Funding Components 

Property Tax

Tuition

State Aid

Economic Challenges 



Gila Community College 
2016/2017 Programs 

Globe Payson Hayden/Winkelman 
Bookkeeping - Cert AGEC-A - Cert AGEC-A - Cert 

Business - AAS AGEC-B - Cert AGEC-B - Cert 

Business Adm - AA AGEC-S - Cert AGEC-S - Cert 

Building & Construction Trades Business Adm - AA Gen Business - AAS 

Building Energy Auditor Bookkeeping - Cert Liberal Studies - AA 

CIS - ABus Business - AAS   

CNA - State Cert CIS - ABus   

Cosmetology - AAS & Cert CNA - State Cert   

Dental Assistant Specialist - Cert Casino Mgmt - Cert   

Early Child Ed - AAS Cosmetology - AAS & Cert   

Education - AA Early Child Ed - AAS   

Electrical & Inst Tech - AAS Education - AA   

EMT - State Cert EMT - State Cert   

Fire Science - AAS Fire Science - AAS   

General Studies - AGS General Studies - AGS   

General Technical Studies - AAS General Technical Studies - AAS   

Industrial Plant Tech - AAS Lab Assistant - Cert   

Liberal Studies - AA Liberal Studies - AA   

Medical Assistant - Cert Medical Assist - Cert   

Medical Coding & Billing - Cert Medical Coding & Billing - Cert   

Nail Technician - Cert Nail Technician - Cert   

Nursing - AAS Nursing - AAS   

Office Service - AAS Office Service - AAS   

Phlebotomy - Cert Pharmacy Tech - Cert   

Renewable Energy - Cert Phlebotomy - Cert   

Sports Medicine - Cert Small Bus Mgmt - AAS   

Small Bus Mgmt - AAS Word Proc Spc - Cert   

Welding - Cert   

Word Proc Spc - Cert     

Gila Community College has access to over 95 degree and certificate programs through Eastern Arizona College. The above programs will vary from year to year based on community needs. 



Gila County Workforce Development  

Courses and Programs  
A 5-Step Process 

  

1. A survey is conducted with local businesses and industry to assess the workforce needs of the 

organizations throughout Gila County. 

 
2. A second survey is conducted to assess the interest level of local adult learners for a proposed program. 

 
3. If industry needs correlate with the interest of Gila County adult learners, the individual course designs 

are written based on the industry standards. 

 
4. After course designs are completed, a certificate of proficiency or associate of applied science degree is 

written, which includes both the workforce curriculum and general education requirements. 

 
5. Once the certificate and/or course are written, the final draft is presented to the academic planning and 

steering committee of Eastern Arizona College. The planning and steering committee consists of 

department chairs and deans. Once the certificates and/or courses are approved, classes are scheduled. 



PARTNERS 

Eastern Arizona College 

Gila County 

Arizona State University 

Northern Arizona University 

Area Fire Departments 

Gila County Superintendent of Schools 

Arizona Public Service (APS) 

Arizona Archaeological Society 

Arizona Department of Economic Security 

Arizona Department of Revenue 

Arizona State Land Office 

Arizona Supreme Court 

Arizona Department of Transportation 

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

Central Arizona Association of Governments (CAAG) 

Re-employment and Pre-layoff Assistance Center (REPAC) 

U.S. Forest Service 

District Wide 

Gila Pueblo Campus 

City of Globe 

Town of Miami 

Freeport-McMoRan 

Capstone Pinto Valley Mining 

Resolution Copper Mining 

Cobre Valley Institute of Technology (CVIT) 

Cobre Valley Country Club (CVCC) 

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center (CVRM) 

The Haven of Globe Long Term Healthcare Facility 

Heritage Health Care 

Gila County 

Gila County Unified School Districts including: 

     - Globe, Hayden-Winkelman, Miami,  

     - Superior, and Young 

United Rentals 

BlueLine Rental 

Resolution Copper 

Aviant Hospice 

  Payson Campus 

Town of Payson 

Northern Arizona Vocational Institute of Technology (NAVIT) 

Mazatzal Casino 

Payson Unified School District 

Banner Payson Medical Center 

Gracie Haught Center 



Creating futures everyday… 

May 2016 Gila Community College Graduates 

Gila Pueblo Campus Payson Campus 



   

ARF-4222   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Twelve Months Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO16-00005912 with
Atwell for Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Landfill Expansion

Background Information
Rich Petrus, Team Leader with Atwell, has been the County's Landfill
Consultant for the past 20 plus years. During that time Mr. Petrus
developed expansion plans for both Buckhead and Russell Gulch. Mr.
Petrus has also provided guidance and assistance with the Arizona
Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) in getting the expansion
plans approved and permitted.

The Scope of Work for expansion services includes:
1. Prepare Plans and Specifications, including the construction drawings
and bid package.
2. Submit application for alternative cover and landfill height change.
3. Conduct pre-bid conference and bid support.
4. Conduct construction oversight.
5. Prepare and submit CQA certification report.

Evaluation
Atwell, through Rich Petrus, has vast historical knowledge of Buckhead
Mesa Landfill, and the expansion and closure plan for the landfill. It is in
the best interest of the County and the citizens to continue this
relationship that has provided great benefit to Gila County and the
citizens of the County.

Conclusion
The Public Works Division Director requests the approval of a contract



The Public Works Division Director requests the approval of a contract
with Atwell for the Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Expansion. Gila County is a
member of ProcureAZ, the State of Arizona's procurement agency for
cooperative purchasing. By using the State of Arizona Contract No.
ADSPO16-00005912 with Atwell, it will save the County both time and
money for a rate that has already been established through the State of
Arizona bidding process. 

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director that the Board of
Supervisors approve the use of State of Arizona, State Procurement Office
Contract No. ADSPO16-00005912 with Atwell for the Phase 3 Buckhead
Mesa Landfill Expansion.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the State of Arizona
Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO16-00005912 with Atwell
whereby the consultant will provide expansion services for the Phase 3
Buckhead Mesa Landfill Expansion.  (James Menlove/Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Buckhead Mesa Phase 3 Proposal
ADSPO16-00005912 State Contract



 

 
 
Gila County | Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Landill Expansion  

Payson, AZ 1 

PROPOSAL 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

 
CLIENT Gila County Recycling and Landfill 

Management 
DATE January 25, 2017 

   

PROPOSAL NO. 

 
P10000213 

     

ADDRESS 745 Rose Moffort Way 

Globe, AZ 85501 
TELEPHONE  928.402.8531 

    
  EMAIL  swinters@gilaco.az.us 

 

PROPOSAL NAME PHASE 3 BUCKHEAD MESA LANDFILL EXPANSION 

 

SITE LOCATION PAYSON , AZ 
 

 

1.0 EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK: 

 
Task 1 – Prepare Plans and Specifications 

Atwell will develop plans and specifications for the expansion.  The expansion design will include a 

system compatible with the previous expansion.  The liner system will include, from top to bottom: 

• One foot of protective cover 

• Geonet for transmission of landfill leachate 

• 60 ml HDPE liner 

• Geosythetic Clay Liner 

• Prepared subgrade 

 

All design specifications will be developed in accordance with the Construction Specification 

Institute Standards.  The plans will be in accordance with engineering best management standards 

and will tie into the previous construction stages.  The following specifications will be included: 

 

• General Requirements 

• Mobilization/Demobilization 

• Health and Safety 

• Site Preparation and Earthwork 

• Geocomposite 

• Geomembrane Liners 

• Geosynthetic Clay Liner 

 



 

 

 
 
Gila County | Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Landill Expansion  

Payson, AZ 2 

It is anticipated that the set of plans will include: 

 

• Existing Conditions 

• Subgrade Topography 

• Cross-Sections and Details 

 

Together the plans and specifications will serve as the Project Bid Documents and Specifications 

that will be available for qualified contractors to prepare bids for construction.  The complete bid 

package is anticipated to include: 

 

Preparation of detailed Construction Drawings and bid package shall include the following: 

• Invitation to Bid 

• Instructions to Bidders 

• Scope of Work 

• Schedule 

• Bid Forms 

• Contract 

• Standard Terms and Conditions 

• Exhibits 

• Drawings with Specifications 

o Cover Sheet 

o Existing Conditions Plan/Demolition Plan 

o Landfill Closure Plan and Detail Sheets 

o Site Grading, Drainage and Soil Erosion/Sedimentation Control Plan 

o Detail and Specifications Sheet(s) 

• CQA Plan 

• Site Specific Contractor Health and Safety Plan 

• Insurance Certificates 

• Contract Forms (C.O., App for payment, substantial completion, etc) 

• Construction Mgmt. Forms 

 

 

Task 2 – Submit Application for Alternative Cover and Landfill Height Change 

Atwell will meet with ADEQ Plan Review Unit prior to commencing the study and design work for 

the landfill expansion, alternative cover design, and increased landfill height.  In this meeting Atwell 

will summarize the concept of landfill design, preliminary layouts and site map. 

It is anticipated that a Type IV modification will be required for the alternative cover design and 

height change.  Atwell will complete the application in accordance with the existing Application 

Plan Format.  The final cover design will consist of an Evaporative Transpiration cover system 

similar to the one designed at the Russell Gulch Landfill.  The proposed landfill height will increase 

20 feet with a final elevation of approximately 5290 feet.   

The alternative cover design will be evaluated using numerical simulations of a 30-year hypothetical 

weather series applied to a one-dimensional representation of the expansion.  Simulations of 

precipitation to be used in the one-dimensional water balance modeling of the expansion cell will be 

used for evaluating infiltration in the prescriptive and variations of the alternative cover designs.  



 

 

 
 
Gila County | Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Landill Expansion  

Payson, AZ 3 

The alternative cover designs will then evaluated by comparing the simulated water fluxes though 

the alternative covers with the simulated water flux through the prescriptive final cover.   

The numerical simulations will be conducted using HYDRUS 1-D (HYDRUS), a one-dimensional 

finite element model for simulating water flow in variably-saturated soils (Simunek et al., 2008).  

HYDRUS uses Richards’ Equation to solve the variably saturated flow problem, and includes the 

hydrological processes relevant to landfill cover design: e.g., time variable precipitation and 

potential evaporation; root water uptake and root growth; and moisture retention – soil suction and 

hydraulic conductivity – moisture relationships.  HYDRUS is widely used for modeling laboratory 

and field-scale applications, including alternative landfill cover design.  A minimum of two 

alternative designs will be evaluated against the performance of the prescriptive cover.  These 

designs will have variable thickness of cover, vegetative layers, and capillary breaks. 

Slope Stability Analysis – Atwell does not anticipate a slope stability analysis will be needed for the 

increased height the final landfill configuration. 

 

Task 3 -  Conduct Pre-Bid Conference and Bid Support 

Following completion of the bid documents, Atwell will assist in advertising the project and placing 

the documents in Plan Rooms in Phoenix.  Atwell will serve as a distributor of the bid documents 

and will maintain a bidders list and addenda log. 

Atwell will conduct a mandatory pre-bid conference at the landfill to discuss the project and allow 

prospective bidders to walk the site.  Atwell will prepare an agenda for the meeting and will respond 

to all questions asked by prospective bidders in the form of an addendum. 

Atwell will also attend the bid opening which is anticipated to be at the County offices and assist the 

County in the review, evaluation and award of the project. 

 

Task 4 – Conduct Construction Oversight 

Atwell will provide time and material (T&M) pricing for two (2) months of construction 

management services (4 weeks for soils and 2 weeks for geosynthetics) for the landfill closure 

project which will include, but not be limited to the following: 

 

Atwell will provide professional staff to inspect, observe, and collect pertinent data, and to facilitate 

the construction efforts and provide some level of assurance that it is executed in accordance with 

the Contract Documents. Atwell will hire a geotechnical engineer to provide compaction testing 

during preparation of the prepared subgrade and foundation backfilling.  Additionally, Atwell will 

compile all of the field testing (compaction testing, liner testing, liner repair) results, selected 

photographs during construction and required field notes. All test reports will be submitted to the 

County in a final construction report. 

 

Atwell will review up to ten (10) contractor requests for information (RFI’s) and provide written 

responses to same.  Services will include review of shop drawings, which shall be submitted by 

contractor all at one time.  Atwell will make every attempt to review shop drawings and return to 

contractor within three business days or less. 

 

Atwell will also conduct and document discussions on weekly construction meetings. Develop a 

monthly report, including: weekly meeting notes, schedule progress status, projected tasks, relevant 

pictures and issues arising during that time period.  

 



 

 

 
 
Gila County | Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Landill Expansion  

Payson, AZ 4 

Task 5 – Prepare and Submit CQA Certification Report 

Following completion of the construction phase, Atwell will prepare the Construction Quality 

Assurance (CQA) Certification Report.  The CQA report will address the construction quality 

assurance of the soils, geosynthetics, and related liner components for landfill.  The report will be 

divided into the following sections: 

 

 1.0  Introduction 

 2.0  Subgrade Excavation and Prepared Subgrade  

 3.0  Geosynthetic Clay Liner Installation 

 4.0  Geomembrane Liner Installation 

 5.0  Geocomposite Drainage Layer Installation (Leachate Collection System) 

 6.0  Protective Soil Layer Installation 

 7.0   Conclusions 

 

Appendices included in the report will include, at a minimum: 

 

Appendix A Project Personnel Contact List 

Appendix B As-Built Drawings 

Appendix C Soil Test Results 

Appendix D Geosynthetic Test Results 

Appendix E Daily CQA Reports 

Appendix F Photo Documentation 

 

Following approval of the certification report by the County, Atwell will submit the final version to 

ADEQ. 

 

 

2.0 PROJECT UNDERSTANDINGS: 
 

In preparing the proposal, we have assumed the following: 

 

� Atwell will require access to the site. 

� This proposal is predicated on the scope outlined herein.  

� Any and all permit fees, applications fees, and review fees will be provided by the Client.  

� This proposal is valid for a period of 30 days from the date of this proposal. 

� Assumes a 6 week construction schedule 
 

 

3.0 EXHIBIT B – SCOPE AND FEE PROPOSAL/WORK AUTHORIZATION: 
 

Task Task Description Fee Type Approved 

(initial) 

1-5 See Attached Table $2,800 FF  

 

FF = Fixed Fee 

 

TME = Time & Materials 

 



 

 

 
 
Gila County | Phase 3 Buckhead Mesa Landill Expansion  

Payson, AZ 5 

Atwell requires a retainer in the amount of $0 prior to initiating work on the project.  Invoices will be submitted monthly for work 

completed and payment is expected within sixty (60) days of the date of the invoice.  In the event of non-payment, services may be 

suspended.  The retainer will be applied to the final invoice for the project. Upon receipt of this signed proposal, work authorization, 

and retainer, Atwell will commit the staff and resources necessary to begin work on the project. Sub-consultant charges, fees, 

commissions, and out of town travel expenses will be billed at cost plus 15%. All other project related reimbursable expenses, 

including vehicle mileage, outside data reports, postage, shipping, reproductions, survey stakes and monuments, will be billed at an 

amount listed on Exhibit C. Billing will be made monthly for work accomplished during the previous month. Invoices are due and 

payable upon receipt. Interest will be charged at the rate of 1.5% per month (annual interest rate of 18%) commencing 30 days after 

date of invoice.  All fees and hourly rates quoted within this contract may increase by 6% annually after the beginning of each year. 

The original Atwell Agreement is enforceable for all subsequent work orders. The Client shall pay all fees and permit charges. 

 
 

 

 



Task 1 - Prepare Plans & Specifications
Labor Rate Hours Extended
Project Manager 169.00$      40 6,760.00$        
Sr. Project Engineer 169.00$      40 6,760.00$        
Project Engineer 128.00$      120 15,360.00$     
CADD Designer 89.00$        24 2,136.00$        
Clerical 70.00$        8 560.00$           

31,576.00$     

Expenses
Miscellaneous 100.00$      1 100.00$           
Getech tests of Borrow Soils 6,760.00$  1 6,760.00$        
Reproduction lump 500.00$      1 500.00$           
Expense Total 7,360.00$        

Task 1 Total 38,936.00$     

Task 2 - Submit Application for Alternative Cover and Landfill Height Change
Labor Rate Hours Extended
Project Manager 169.00$      16 2,704.00$        
Sr. Project Engineer 169.00$      24 4,056.00$        
Project Engineer 128.00$      -$                 
Project Geologist 115.00$      4 460.00$           
CADD Designer 89.00$        8 712.00$           
Clerical 70.00$        4 280.00$           
Labor Total 8,212.00$        

Expenses
Miscellaneous 100.00$      1 100.00$           
Reproduction lump 100.00$      1 100.00$           
Expense Total 200.00$           

Task 2 Total 8,412.00$        

Task 3 - Conduct Pre-Bid Conference and Bid Support
Rate Hours Extended

Project Manager 169.00$      8 1,352.00$        
Sr. Project Engineer 169.00$      16 2,704.00$        
Project Engineer 128.00$      -$                 
Project Geologist 115.00$      -$                 
CADD Designer 89.00$        -$                 
Clerical 70.00$        -$                 
Labor Total 4,056.00$        

Expenses
Vehicle Miles 180.00$      0.55 99.00$             
Reproduction lump 250.00$      1 250.00$           
Expense Total 349.00$           

Task 3 Total 4,405.00$        



Task 4 - Conduct Construction Oversight
Rate Hours Extended

Project Manager 169.00$      64 10,816.00$     
Sr. Project Engineer 169.00$      40 6,760.00$        
Project Engineer 128.00$      -$                 
Project Geologist 115.00$      320 36,800.00$     
CADD Designer 89.00$        40 3,560.00$        
Clerical 70.00$        -$                 
Labor Total 57,936.00$     

Expenses
Vehicle weeks 250.00$      8 2,000.00$        
Per Diem weeks 600.00$      8 4,800.00$        
CQA Inspector days 1,425.00$  25 35,625.00$     
Geotech Lab Testing lump 5,000.00$  1 5,000.00$        

Subcon Fee 15% 6,813.75$        
Expense Total 47,425.00$     

Task 4 Total 105,361.00$   

Task 5 - Prepare and Submit CQA Report 
Rate Hours Extended

Project Manager 169.00$      16 2,704.00$        
Sr. Project Engineer 169.00$      24 4,056.00$        
Project Engineer 128.00$      40 5,120.00$        
Project Geologist 115.00$      40 4,600.00$        
CADD Designer 89.00$        8 712.00$           
Clerical 70.00$        8 560.00$           
Labor Total 17,752.00$     

Expenses
Miscellaneous 100.00$      1 100.00$           
Reproduction lump 250.00$      1 250.00$           
Expense Total 350.00$           

Task 5 Total 18,102.00$     

Project Total 175,216.00$   



              
 
                    ATWELL, LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2016 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Page 1 of 2                      Direct Reimbursable 

Labor Charges 
 
Senior Project Manager ........................................................................................................ $190/hour 
Project Manager I-II ................................................................................................. $154 to $169/hour 
Project Coordinator............................................................................................................... $139/hour 
Engineering Services 

Senior Project Engineer .................................................................................................. $169/hour 
Engineer/Designer I-V ....................................................................................... $102 to $154/hour 
Engineer Technician .........................................................................................................$95/hour 

Surveying Services 
Senior Project Surveyor .................................................................................................. $169/hour 
Project Surveyor I-V .......................................................................................... $102 to $154/hour 
Survey Technician ............................................................................................................$95/hour 
One Man Crew ..............................................................................................................  $124/hour 
Two Man Crew .................................................................................................. $151 to $176/hour 

Planning/Landscape Design Services 
Senior Project Planner .................................................................................................... $169/hour 
Planner/Designer I-V ......................................................................................... $102 to $154/hour 
Planning Technician .........................................................................................................$95/hour 

Environmental/Ecological Services 
Senior Subject Matter Expert I-II ....................................................................... $190 to $203/hour 
Senior Environmental Consultant ................................................................................... $169/hour 
Environmental Consultant I-V ........................................................................... $102 to $154/hour 
Environmental Technician I-III ............................................................................... $70 to $89/hour 

CAD/GIS Services 
CAD Technician I-II ................................................................................................ $81 to $89/hour 
Senior GIS Analyst .......................................................................................................... $125/hour 
GIS Analyst I-II ................................................................................................... $102 to $115/hour 
GIS Technician I-II .................................................................................................. $82 to $89/hour 

Construction Services 
Construction Manager I-II ................................................................................. $139 to $154/hour 
Construction Engineer I-III ................................................................................. $102 to $125/hour 
Construction Inspector .....................................................................................................$83/hour 

Administrative Services/Interns ................................................................................... $65 to $86/hour 
Firm Principal/Project Executive ........................................................................................... $235/hour 
Expert Testimony .................................................................................................................. $295/hour 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



              
 
                    ATWELL, LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2016 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Page 2 of 2                      Direct Reimbursable 

Non-Labor Charges 
 
Office: 

24” X 36” bond black and white plots/copies ................................................................ $1.50/each 
24” X 36” bond black and white mylars ............................................................................$10/each 
24” X 36” color plots/copies .............................................................................................$25/each 
8.5” X 11” black and white plots/copies ........................................................................ $0.15/each 
8.5” X 11” color plots/copies ............................................................................................. $1/each 
11” X 17” black and white plots/copies ......................................................................... $0.25/each 
11” X 17” color plots/copies .......................................................................................... $1.50/each 
County GIS Data .............................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Postage & Shipping ........................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Conference Calls .............................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Recording Fees ...............................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Misc./Out of Pocket Expenses ........................................................................................cost + 10% 

 
Field Equipment: 

RTK GPS Unit w/ Data Collector ...................................................................................... $225/day 
Robotic T.S. w/ Data Collector........................................................................................... $50/day 
Photoionization Detector (PID) ....................................................................................... $100/day 
Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) ..................................................................................... $325/day 
Laser Scanner ............................................................................................................... $1,000/day 
Pipe Locator ...................................................................................................................... $15/day 
4-Gas Monitor w/ Remote Sensor ..................................................................................... $75/day 
ATV/Gator + Trailer ......................................................................................................... $325/day 

 
Field Materials: 

Wood Stakes ..................................................................................................................... $1/stake 
Iron Pipes ........................................................................................................................... $2/pipe 
Monuments (Concrete) ....................................................................................................$10/each 
Monuments (Brass) ..........................................................................................................$18/each 
Monuments (Aluminum) ..................................................................................................$12/each 

 
Miscellaneous: 

Mileage* .......................................................................................................................... IRS RATE 
Auto Rental ....................................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Air Fare ..........................................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Lodging** .......................................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Meals** .........................................................................................................................cost + 10% 
Project Sub-consultants .................................................................................................cost + 15% 
 
 

*      Company Vehicle Mileage subject to change and shall be billed at current IRS allowable rate. 
**    Travel Costs as noted, unless otherwise agreed to as a per diem charge per contract. 

                            All permit, application, and submittal fees shall be paid directly by the client. 

 



Offer and Acceptance State of Arizona 

• 
State Procurement Office 

PAGE 
100 N. 15111 Ave. Suite 201 SOLICITATION NO.: ADSP016-00005912 Request 1 

for Qualifications: 2016 Annual Professional 
Phoenix, AZ. 85007 Services List 

Offeror: Atwell, LLC 
OF 
I 

OFFER 

TO THE STATE OF ARIZONA: 
The Undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material, service or construction in compliance with all terms, 
conditions, specifications and amendments in the Solicitation and any written exceptions in the offer. Signature also certifies 
Small Business status. 

Atwell, LLC 
Company Name 

4700 E. Southern A venue 
Address 

Mesa AZ 
City State 

tnorthrop@atwell-group.com 
Contact Email Address 

By signature in the Offer section above, the Offeror certifies: 

Printed Name 

85206 Vice President 
Zip Title 

Phone: (480) 218-8831 

Fax: (480) 830-4888 

1. The submission of the Offer did not involve collusion or other anticompetltive practices. 
2. The Offeror shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of Federal Executive Order 11246, State Executive Order 

2009-9 or A.R.S. §§ 41-1461 through 1465. 
3 . The Offeror has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special 

discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. Failure to provide a valid signature affirming the stipulations required 
by this clause shall result in rejection of the offer. Signing the offer with a false statement shall void the offer, any resulting contract and may be subject to 
legal remedies provided by law. 

4 . The Offeror certifies that the above referenced organization _15/_15 NOT a small business with less than 100 employees or has gross revenues of $4 
million or less. 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

The Offer is hereby accepted. 

The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services listed by the attached contract and based upon the solicitation, 
including all terms, conditions, specifications, amendments, etc~nd the Contractor's Offer as accepted by the State. 

This Contract shall henceforth be referred to as Contract No. -'~..._,..-";;Jb::z....>oo'-L/ ...... 6'---"'{X)"-""-'VO=~S~9!...J/t....:;:2,:..__ __________ _ 

The effective date of the Contract is -4/rl--'-'a="' .... C"-h _.1""4-1~2"""""'()..~..../,'"'6 _ ______ _____ _ 

The Contractor is cautioned not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until 
Contractor receives purchase order, contact release document or written notice to proceed. 

State of Arizona 2 / r=- 1 
Awarded this b day ot--'-l ....:;;ee-:..U..:...{il_ll..:...f_,_lf'----- 20 // 

~~ 
Procurement Officer 

SPO Form 203- Offer and Acceptance (rev 10-2013) 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
DEFINITIONS 

 
Architect Services, Engineer Services, Land Surveying Services, Assayer Services, Geologist Services and 
Landscape Architect Services:  Those professional services within the scope of the practice of those services as 
provided in ARS § 32-101. 

 
Branch Office: A geographically distinct place of business or subsidiary office of a firm that has a key role on the team. 

 
Discipline: Primary technical capabilities of key personnel, as evidenced by academic degree, professional registration, 
certification, and/or extensive experience. 

 
Firm:  Defined in ARS § 32-101(B.19.). 

 
Key Personnel:  Individuals who will have major contract responsibilities and/or provide unusual or unique expertise. 

 
SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS: 
 
1 .  Complete this form for each branch office seeking work under this RFQ. 

 
a .  – e. Firm (or Branch Office) Name and Address.  Self-explanatory. 

 
f. Year Established. Enter the year the firm (or branch office, if appropriate) was established under the current 

name. 
 

g. Ownership. 
 

(g1).   Type. Enter the type of ownership or legal structure of the firm (sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, 
joint venture, etc.). 

 
(g2).   Small Business Status. A firm is a small business if the firm has less than 100 employees or has 

gross revenues of $4 million or less. 
 

h.-j.  Point of Contact. Provide this information for a representative of the firm that the Customer can contact 
for additional information. The representative must be empowered to speak on contractual and policy 
matters. 

 
k. Name of Firm. Enter the name of the firm. 

 
2. Employees by Discipline. 
 

a.   Select disciplines from the List of Disciplines (Function Code) listed on Page 3 of 4 Instructions.  For 
employees that do not qualify for any of the disciplines, select “Other”.    Note: The intended searchable 
database indicated in the RFQ will be populated from the Qualifications Form I Excel attachment only. 

 
b.    Each person can be counted only twice; once for his/her primary function and once for his/her secondary 

function. Primary and secondary functions should be indicated by including a “P” or an “S” in column b 
after the Description Title is given. 

 
c-d.  If the form is completed for a firm (including all branch offices), enter the number of employees by 

disciplines in column c. If the form is completed for a branch office, enter the number of employees by 
discipline in column d and for the firm in column c. 

 
3. Profile of Firm's Experience and Annual Average Revenue for Last Year. 

 
a.   Enter the approximate number of projects the firm (or branch) has done attributable by Profile Code listed 

on Page 3 of 4 Instructions over the last year. 

Page 1 of 4 Instructions 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
 

b.   Enter the appropriate Profile Codes from Instructions Pages 3 of 4 that represent the type of work the firm 
(or branch) has done over the last year.  

 
c. Using the Revenue Index Number on Page 3 of 6 Form, indicate the approximate revenue the firm has 

earned over the last year per Profile Code entered into the table. 
 
4. Resumes of Key Personnel Proposed for This Contract.  Complete this section for each key person who will 

participate in this contract. 
 

a. Self-explanatory. 
b. Self-explanatory 
c. Total years of relevant experience (block c1), and years of relevant experience with current firm, but not 

necessarily the same branch/office (block c2). 
d. Name, City and State of the firm where the person currently works, which must correspond with one of the 

firms (or branch office or a firm, if appropriate) listed in Section 1. 
e. Provide information on the highest relevant academic degree(s) received.  Indicate the area(s) of specialization 

for each degree. 
f. Provide information on current relevant professional registration(s) and in which State(s) they are current. 
g. Provide information on any other professional qualifications relating to this contract, such as education, 

professional registration, publications, organizational memberships, certifications, training, awards, and foreign 
language capabilities. 

h. Provide information on no more than five (5) projects in the last year which the person had a significant role that 
demonstrates the person’s capability relevant to her/his proposed role in this contract.  These projects do not 
necessarily have to be any of the projects presented in Section 5 for the project team if the person was not 
involved in any of those those projects or the person worked on other projects that were more relevant than the 
team projects in Section 5.  Use the check box provided to indicate if the project was performed with any office 
of the current firm.  If any of the professional services or construction projects are not complete, leave Year 
Completed blank and indicate the status in Brief Description and Specific Role. 

 
5. Example Projects Which Best Illustrate Firms Qualification for this contract.  Select project where multiple team 

members worked together, if possible, that demonstrate the team’s capability to perform work similar to that required 
for this contract.  Complete one Section 5 for each project.  List no more than five (5) projects. 

 
a. Title and Locations of project or contract.  For an indefinite delivery contract, the location is the geographic 

scope of the contract.  
b. Enter the year completed of the professional services (such as planning, engineering study, or design), and/or 

the year completed if construction.  If any of the professional services or the construction projects are not 
complete, leave Year Completed blank and indicate the status in Brief Description of Project and Relevance 
to This Contract (block f). 

c. Project Owner or user, such as a government agency or installation, an institution, a corporation or private 
individual. 

d. Provide the original budget or not to exceed dollar amount for the project. 
e. Provide the Total Cost of the Project. If any of the professional services or construction projects is not 

complete, indicate the percentage compete and whether this project will be on budget, over or under budget. 
f. Brief Description: Indicate scope, size, and length of project, principle elements and special features of the 

project.  Discuss the relevance of the example project to this contract. 
 

6. Additional Information.  Use this section to provide additional information you feel may be necessary to describe 
your firm’s qualifications for this contract. 

  
7. Annual Average Professional Services Revenues of Firm for Last 3 Years. Complete this block for the firm or 

branch office for which this form is completed. In column a, enter an approximate percentage of total work 
attributable to State, Federal or Municipal Work. In column b, enter an approximate percentage of total work 
attributable to Non-Government work. Percentages should take into consideration work completed over the last 3 
years. 

Page 2 of 4 Instructions 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
8. Authorized Representative. An authorized representative of the firm or branch office must sign and date the 

completed form. Signing attests that the information provided is current and factual. Provide the name and title of the 
authorized representative who signed the form. 

 
 

List of Disciplines (Function Codes) for Question 2 
 
 

Aeronautical Engineer 
Agricultural Engineer 
Archeologist 
Architect 
Architectural Engineering 
Biologist 
CADD Technician 
Chemical Engineer 
Civil Engineer 
Construction Manager 
Construction Inspector 
Control Systems Engineer 
Cost Engineer/Estimator 
Ecologist 
Electrical Engineer 

Environmental Engineer 
Environmental Scientist 
Fire Protection Engineer 
Geodetic Surveyor 
Geographic Information System 
Specialist 
Geological Engineer 
Geologist 
Hydrographic Surveyor 
Hydraulic Engineer 
Hydrologist 
Industrial Engineer 
Landscape Architect 
Mechanical Engineer 
Metallurgical Engineer 

Mining Engineer 
Nuclear Engineer 
Petroleum Engineer  
Photogrammetrist 
Project Manager 
Sanitary Engineer 
Soils Engineer 
Structural Engineer 
Technician/Analyst 
Transportation Engineer 
Water Resources Engineer 
 

 
 

List of Experience Categories (Profile Codes for Question 3) 
 
 

 
Acoustics, Noise Abatement 
Aerial Photography; Airborne Data and Imagery Collection and 

Analysis 
Activity Centers 
Air Pollution Control 
Airports; Navaids; Airport Lighting; Aircraft Fueling 
Airports; Terminals and Hangars; Freight Handling 
Agricultural Development; Grain Storage; Farm Mechanization 
Animal Facilities 
Anti-Terrorism/Force Protection 
Area Master Planning 
Auditoriums and Theaters 
Automation; Controls; Instrumentation 
Barracks; Dormitories 
Bridge Design: Bridges  
Cartography 
Cemeteries (Planning and Relocation) 
Chemical Processing and Storage  
Child Care/Development Facilities  
Codes; Standards; Ordinances 
Cold Storage; Refrigeration and Fast Freeze 
Commercial Building (Low Rise); Shopping Centers 
Community Facilities 
Communications Systems; TV; Microwave 
Computer Facilities 
Conservation and Resource Management 
Construction Management 
Construction Surveying 
Corrosion Control; Cathodic Protection Electrolysis 
Cost Estimating; Cost Engineering and Analysis; Parametric 

Costing; Forecasting 
Cryogenic Facilities  
Construction Materials Testing  

Dams (Concrete; Arch) 
Dams (Earth; Rock); Dikes; Levees 
Desalinization (Process and Facilities) 
Design-Build - Preparation of Requests for Proposals 
Digital Elevation and Terrain Model Development 
Digital Orthophotography 
Dining Halls; Clubs; Restaurants 
Dredging Studies and Design 
Design & Planning Structured Parking Facilities 
Detention Security Systems 
Disability / Special Needs 
Ecological and Archeological Investigations 
Educational Facilities; Classrooms 
Electrical Studies and Design 
Electronics 
Elevators; Escalators; People-Movers 
Energy / Water Auditing Savings 
Energy Conservation; New Energy Sources 
Environmental Impact Studies, Assessments or Statements 
Fallout Shelters; Blast-Resistant Design 
Fire Protection 
Fisheries; Fish Ladders 
Forensic Engineering 
Garages; Vehicles Maintenance Facilities; Parking  
Gas Systems (Propane; Natural, Etc.) 
Geodetic Surveying:  Ground and Airborne 
Heating; Ventilating; Air Conditioning 
Highways; Streets; Airfield Paving; Parking Lots 
Historical Preservation 
Hospital and Medical Facilities 
Hotels; Motels 
Housing (Residential, Multi-Family; 

Apartments; Condominiums) 

Page 3 of 4 Instructions 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
Hotels; Motels 
Hydraulics and Pneumatics 
Hydrographic Surveying 
Industrial Buildings; Manufacturing Plants 
Industrial Processes; Quality Control 
Industrial Waste Treatment 
Intelligent Transportation Systems 
Infrastructure 
Irrigation; Drainage 
Judicial and Courtroom Facilities 
Laboratories; Medical Research Facilities 
Land Surveying 
Landscape Architecture 
Libraries; Museums; Galleries 
Lighting (Interior; Display; Theater, Etc.) 
Lighting (Exteriors; Streets; Memorials; Athletic Fields, Etc.) 
Labs - General 
Labs – Research – Dry 
Labs – Research – Wet 
LEED Accredited A/E 
LEED Independent 3rd Party Building Commissioning 
Mapping Location/Addressing Systems 
Materials Handling Systems; Conveyors; Sorters 
Metallurgy 
Materials Testing 
Measurement / Verification / Conservation Water Consumption 

Savings  
Mining and Mineralogy  
Medical Related 
Modular Systems Design; Fabricated Structures or 

Components 
Mold Investigation 
Museums 
Nuclear Facilities; Nuclear Shielding  
Office Buildings; Industrial Parks  
Outdoor Recreation 
Petroleum and Fuel (Storage and Distribution) 
Photogrammetry 
Pipelines (Cross-Country - Liquid and Gas) 
Phase I Environmental 
Prisons & Correctional Facilities 
Plumbing and Piping Design 
Prisons and Correctional Facilities 
Product, Machine Equipment Design Pneumatic 
Structures, Air-Support Buildings Power Generation, 
Transmission, Distribution Public Safety Facilities 
Radar; Sonar; Radio and Radar Telescopes 
Radio Frequency Systems and Shielding’s 
Railroad; Rapid Transit 
Recreation Facilities (Parks, Marinas, Etc.) 
Refrigeration Plants/Systems 
Rehabilitation (Buildings; Structures; Facilities) 
Research Facilities 
Resources Recovery; Recycling 
Roof Infrared Imaging to Identify Water Leaks 

Roofing 
Safety Engineering; Accident Studies; OSHA Studies 
Security Systems; Intruder and Smoke Detection 
Seismic Designs and Studies 
Sewage Collection, Treatment and Disposal  
Soils and Geologic Studies; Foundations  
Solar Energy Utilization 
Solid Wastes; Incineration; Landfill 
Special Environments; Clean Rooms, Etc.  
Structural Design; Special Structures 
Surveying; Platting; Mapping; Flood Plain Studies 
Sustainable Design 
Swimming Pools 
Storm Water Handling and Facilities 
Specifications Writing 
Toxicology 
Testing and Inspection Services 
Traffic and Transportation Engineering 
Topographic Surveying and Mapping 
Towers (Self-Supporting and Guyed Systems) 
Tunnels and Subways 
Traffic Studies 
Transportation 
Urban renewals; Community Development 
Utilities (Gas and Steam) 
Value Analysis; Life-Cycle Costing 
Warehouse and Depots 
Water Resources; Hydrology; Ground Water 
Water Supply; Treatment and Distribution 
Wind Tunnels; Research/Testing Facilities Design 
Waste Water Treatment Facility 
Water Well Rehabilitation; Water Well Work 
Zoning; Land Use Studies 

 

Page 4 of 4 Instructions 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
 

(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.) 
 
 

1. Annual Request for Qualifications 
 
 

 
a.  FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE ) NAME: 

Atwell, LLC 

 
b.  FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) STREET: 

4700 E. Southern Avenue 

 
c.  FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) CITY: 

Mesa 

 
d.  FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) STATE: 

Arizona 

 
e.  FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) ZIP CODE: 

85206 

 
 
f. YEAR ESTABLISHED: 

2009 

 
 

 
(g1). OWNERSHIP - TYPE: 

Limited Liability Company  

 
(g2) OWNERSHIP - SMALL BUSINESS STATUS: 

N/A 

 
 

h. POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE: 
Ted Northrop, PE                  Regional Vice President 

  
i. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER: 

(480) 218-8831 

 
j. POINT OF CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

tnorthrop@atwell-group.com 

 
 
k.           NAME OF FIRM (If block 1a is a branch office): 
 

Atwell, LLC 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 6 Form 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
 

2. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 
 

 

a. Discipline Title b.  Function:  Primary 
(P) or Secondary (S) 

c. No. of Employees 
- Firm 

d. No. of 
Employees - Branch 

Archeologist  S 1  

Biologist S 12  

CADD Technician P 18 3 

Civil Engineer P 58 14 

Construction Manager P 3 1 

Construction Inspector P 1 0 

Control Systems Engineer S 3 0 

Cost Engineer/Estimator S 12 4 

Ecologist P 16 1 

Electrical Engineer P 17 1 

Environmental Engineer S 24 7 

Environmental Scientist S 24 7 

Geodetic Surveyor S 1 0 

Geographic Information Systems Specialist P 2 0 

Geological Engineer S 15 4 

Geologist P 15 4 

Hydrographic Surveyor S 1 0 

Hydraulic Engineer S 1 0 

Hydrologist S 5 1 

Landscape Architect S 1 0 

Mining Engineer S 3 3 

Petroleum Engineer P 7 0 

Project Manager P 35 2 

Sanitary Engineer S 6 0 

Structural Engineer P 3 0 

Technician/Analyst  S 8 0 

Transportation Engineer S 1 0 

Page 2 of 6 Form 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
Water Resources Engineer S 3 0 

Total  296 52 

Page 3 of 6 Form 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
 
 

3. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE AND ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST YEAR 
 

 

a. Approximate 
No. of Projects 

 
b. Experience 

c. Revenue Index 
Number (see below) 

 Aerial Photography; Airborne Data and Imagery 2 

 Air Pollution Control 1 

 Airports; Terminals and Hangars; Freight Handling 3 

 Area Master Planning 6 

 Automation; Controls; Instrumentation 1 

 Chemical Processing & Storage 2 

 Commercial Building (low rise); Shopping Centers 6 

 Community Facilities 1 

 Communications Systems; TV; Microwave 1 

 Construction Management 3 

 Construction Surveying 5 

 Controls and Electronics Engineer 1 

 Corrosion Control; Cathodic Protection; Electrolysis 1 

 Cost Estimating; Cost Engineering and Analysis 3 

 Design & Planning Structured Parking Facilities  1 

 Design-Build – Preparation of Requests for Proposals 6 

 Digital Elevation and Terrain Model Development 1 

 Digital Orthophotography  1 

 Dining Halls; Clubs; Restaurants 1 

 Disability/Special Needs 2 

 Dredging Studies and Design 1 

 Ecological & Archaeological Investigations 6 

 Educational Facilities; Classrooms 1 

 Electrical Studies and Design 1 

 Energy Conservation; New Energy Sources 2 

 Environmental Impact Studies, Assessments  6 

Page 4 of 6 Form 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
 Forensic Engineering 1 

 Garages; Vehicles Maintenance Facilities; Parking 1 

 Geodetic Surveying; Ground and Airborne 1 

 Highways; Streets; Airfield Paving; Parking Lots 5 

 Historical Preservation 1 

 Hospitals & Medical Facilities  3 

 Hotels; Motels 1 

 Housing (Residential, Multi-Family; Apartments) 7 

 Hydraulics & Pneumatics 2 

 Hydrographic Surveying 1 

 Industrial Buildings; Manufacturing Plants 4 

 Industrial Waste  Treatment 1 

 Infrastructure 6 

 Irrigation; Drainage 5 

 Land Surveying 7 

 Landscape Architecture 2 

 LEED Accredited A/E 1 

 Libraries; Museums; Galleries 1 

 Materials Handling Systems; Conveyors; Sorters 5 

 Mining & Mineralogy 6 

 Mold Investigation  1 

 Office Buildings; Industrial Parks 5 

 Outdoor Recreation  2 

 Petroleum and Fuel (Storage and Distribution) 3 

 Phase I Environmental 5 

 Photogrammetry  1 

 Pipelines (Cross-Country – Liquid & Gas) 6 

 Plumbing & Piping Design 1 

 Power Generation, Transmission, Distribution 5 

Page 5 of 6 Form 



 

ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 
 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO:  
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
 Public Safety Facilities 1 

 Recreation Facilities (Parks, Marinas, Etc.) 1 

 Rivers; Canals; Waterways; Flood Control 1 

 Sewage Collection, Treatment and Disposal 5 

 Soils & Geologic Studies; Foundations 4 

 Solar Energy Utilization  1 

 Solid Wastes; Incineration; Landfill 1 

   

   

   

   

   

   
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 
 

1. Less than $100,000 6. $2 million to less than $5 million 
2. $100,000 to less than $250,000 7. $5 million to less than $10 million 
3. $250,000 to less than $500,00 0 8. $10 million to less than $25 million 
4. $500,000 to less than $1 million 9. $25 million to less than $50 million 
5. $1 million to less than $2 million 10. $50 million or greater 

 
  

Page 6 of 6 Form 



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

4. Resumes of Key Personnel Proposed for this Contract  (Complete one Section #4 for each key person.)

a. NAME b. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT c. YEARS EXPERIENCE
1. TOTAL 2. WITH CURRENT FIRM

d. LOCATION (City and State) 

e. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) f. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING - REGISTRATIONS

g. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Organizations, Awards, etc.) 

H.  RELEVANT PROJECTS 

1. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

Check if project performed with current firm (3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    

2. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

3. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    Check if project performed with current firm  

4. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm  

5. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

Page 7 of 6 Form 

Ed Balliet, RLS, CFedS Survey Project Manager 29 1.5 
Mesa, Arizona

Registered Land Surveyor - Arizona #31587

Certified Federal Surveyor #1442

Rancho Mercado - Surprise, Arizona 

Church Farms - Queen Creek, Arizona 

Camp Sombrero - Phoenix, Arizona

X
X

X
X

X
X

Farrell Road - Maricopa, Arizona

Pinnacle Peak Drainage Structures - Scottsdale, Arizona

X
X

X
X

Currently conducting a construction survey for this leadership center.

Currently conducting topographic mapping, ALTA surveys, and subdivision platting for this master planned community. 
Services also included providing legal descriptions and exhibits for right of way and easement aquisition. 

Conducting topo survey for inventory of drainage structures with Pinnacle Peak Flood Plain.

Performing construction survey services for said roadway and streetscape. 

Assisting in platting of this 2,310-lot Master Plan Community on 878 acres. Services included providing legal descriptions
and exhibits for right of way and easement aquisition.



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

4. Resumes of Key Personnel Proposed for this Contract  (Complete one Section #4 for each key person.)

a. NAME b. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT c. YEARS EXPERIENCE
1. TOTAL 2. WITH CURRENT FIRM

d. LOCATION (City and State) 

e. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) f. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING - REGISTRATIONS

g. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Organizations, Awards, etc.) 

H.  RELEVANT PROJECTS 

1. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

Check if project performed with current firm (3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    

2. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

3. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    Check if project performed with current firm  

4. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm  

5. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

Page 7 of 6 Form 

Richard Petrus, CEM Senior Environmental Manager
38 6

Mesa, Arizona

Master of Arts, Geology - University of Missouri Certified Environmental Manager - Nevada CEM-15636

West Sky Harbor Airport Biosparging Project - Phoenix, AZ
2015

X
X

X

2015

XADOT Bylas UST Removal

ADOT 202 Loop Phase I Site Assessment

ADEQ Willcox LUST Site Remediation

Gila County Solid Waste Management Services

X

X

X

X

X

2015

Developed the monitoring requirements, action levels, and response actions.  Responsible for all 
permitting tasks for this LUST remediation project.  Project involved remediation of a 1.3 
million gallon Jet A fuel release.

Mr. Petrus managed the conduct to 13 Phase I Environmental Site Assessments for ADOT.  The ESAs were along the 
59th Avenue alignment.  Properties included farmland, electric substations and gravel quarries.  Atwell developed 
recommendations for the Recognized Environmental Concerns found during the conduct of the ESAs.

Mr. Petrus is currently managing the Clayton Radiator site remediation for ADEQ’s State Lead Unit. For this site tasks included 
groundwater well installation, groundwater sampling, installation of an air sparge and SVE system, and operation and maintenance of 
the AS/SVE systems. Atwell prepares annual site remedial progress reports to ADEQ. Contract will extend through 2016.

Mr Petrus managed the removal of an orphan underground storage tank on ADOT right-of-way.  Atwell removed the 
tanks and associated piping, collected soil samples to confirm there was no release and prepared the site closure report.

Since 2010, Mr. Petrus has managed an on-call solid waste services contract with the County which includes groundwater and methane monitoring, greenhouse gas 
emission estimation, financial assurance estimates, SWPPP preparation and training, spill response, and response to any agency requests.  Atwell staff have managed 
the design and construction of 26 acres of double lined expansions at two County landfills.  Atwell staff managed the Type IV Landfill Expansion application for the 
Russell Gulch Landfill.  The landfill will be increased by nearly 1,000,00 cubic yards of capacity.  Contract work is anticipated to extend through 2016.

X

X



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

4. Resumes of Key Personnel Proposed for this Contract  (Complete one Section #4 for each key person.)

a. NAME b. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT c. YEARS EXPERIENCE
1. TOTAL 2. WITH CURRENT FIRM

d. LOCATION (City and State) 

e. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) f. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING - REGISTRATIONS

g. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Organizations, Awards, etc.) 

H.  RELEVANT PROJECTS 

1. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

Check if project performed with current firm  (3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    

2. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

3. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    Check if project performed with current firm  

4. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm  

5. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

Page 7 of 6 Form 

Darrell Smith, PE Engineer 30 2

Professional Engineer - State of Arizona #20952

Mesa, Arizona

Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering

American Society of Civil Engineers, East Valley Partnership

2015

X

X

2015

2015

X

2014

CVS - Douglas, AZ

Acted as the Project Manager, performing onsite grading, drainage, paving, and ADOT driveway 
for this project.

X

X

X

X

Mountain Bridge - Mesa, AZ

Acted as the Project Manager for the 700-acre, 1,400 lot master planned community. Darrell worked
with the Flood Control District of Maricopa County and City of Mesa throughout the project.

Kneader's Restaurant - Glendale, AZ

As the Project Manager, Mr. Smith oversaw the grading, drainage, water and sewer design for
this project. 

Eastmark - Mesa, AZ

Darrell acted as the Project Manager for this 3200-acre master planned community. Scope included
preparation of master wastewater, water, raw water and drainage infrastructure plans.



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

4. Resumes of Key Personnel Proposed for this Contract  (Complete one Section #4 for each key person.)

a. NAME b. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT c. YEARS EXPERIENCE
1. TOTAL 2. WITH CURRENT FIRM

d. LOCATION (City and State) 

e. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) f. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING - REGISTRATIONS

g. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Organizations, Awards, etc.) 

H.  RELEVANT PROJECTS 

1. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

Check if project performed with current firm (3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    

2. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

3. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE    Check if project performed with current firm  

4. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm  

5. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 
Professional Services Construction (if applicable) 

(3)  BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm  

Page 7 of 6 Form 

James Spring, PLS Survey

Mesa, Arizona

Professional Land Surveyor - Arizona #22282

35 2

National Society of Professional Surveyors

2015

X
SR 85 Landfill - City of Phoenix

X
Provided on-call survey services for the City of Phoenix SR 85 landfill site for design along with 
construction quality assurance and quality control.

2015
Tempe Town Lake Lower Dam Review - Tempe, Arizona X

Provided professional survey services in assisting the city in yearly structural review of foundation
cracks.

1st Avenue - Mesa, Arizona X

Currently providing professional services for Jacobs design team for 1st avenue roadway design
in the City of Mesa.

X

X

X

Optima Kierkland Condo Complex - City of Phoenix

Currently providing survey services in the development of a five unit highrise condominium complex.

lpalmer
Highlight



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

5. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S QUALIFICATIONS FOR
THIS CONTRACT 

(Present no more than five (5) projects.  Complete one Section 5 for each project.)

a. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) b. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

23. PROJECT OWNER’S INFORMATION

c .PROJECT OWNER d .ORIGINAL BUDGET/NTE AMOUNT OF PROJECT e. TOTAL COST OF PROJECT

f. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (include scope, size, and length of project)

Page 8 of 6 Form 

Gila County Solid Waste Management Services - Globe, Arizona
X

ongoing

Gila County on going since 2010 $250,000

Since 2010, Mr. Petrus has managed an on-call solid waste services contract with the County which includes groundwater and methane 
monitoring, greenhouse gas emission estimation, financial assurance estimates, SWPPP preparation and training, spill response, and 
response to any agency requests.  Atwell staff have managed the design and construction of 26 acres of double lined expansions at two 
County landfills.  Atwell staff managed the Type IV Landfill Expansion application for the Russell Gulch Landfill.  The landfill will be 
increased by nearly 1,000,00 cubic yards of capacity.  Contract work is anticipated to extend through 2016.



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

5. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S QUALIFICATIONS FOR
THIS CONTRACT 

(Present no more than five (5) projects.  Complete one Section 5 for each project.)

a. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) b. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

23. PROJECT OWNER’S INFORMATION

c .PROJECT OWNER d .ORIGINAL BUDGET/NTE AMOUNT OF PROJECT e. TOTAL COST OF PROJECT

f. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (include scope, size, and length of project)

Page 8 of 6 Form 

ADOT & Pulice Construction Total Budget $75 million Survey Budget $780,000

XSouth Loop 202 Widening - Phoenix, Arizona

The design-build team provided construction survey and layout for two new HOV flyover bridges at the 101/202 
intersection and the I-10/202 intersection. The project also required the layout of 11 miles of new HOV lanes 
along the 202 from Gilbert Road to the I-10 Interchange.

2013



ATTACHMENT I – General Qualifications 

ANNUAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE NO: 
ADSPO16-00005912 

STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
Department of Administration 

100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

5. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S QUALIFICATIONS FOR
THIS CONTRACT 

(Present no more than five (5) projects.  Complete one Section 5 for each project.)

a. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) b. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

23. PROJECT OWNER’S INFORMATION

c .PROJECT OWNER d .ORIGINAL BUDGET/NTE AMOUNT OF PROJECT e. TOTAL COST OF PROJECT

f. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (include scope, size, and length of project)

Page 8 of 6 Form 

SR 303 - Cactus Avenue to Clear View Drive - Glendale, Arizona X

ADOT & Pulice Construction Total Budget $125 million Survey Budget $1.1 million

This project was the first CMAR project in which ADOT and the Federal Highway Administration worked 
together. The team supervised the construction staking for the 7.5 mile project, including three new overpasses 
and interchanges. Additional services included review of the design plans before construction and assisting 
Pulice Construction in developing CADD drawings used for shop drawings or data for field layout.

2014





   

ARF-4228   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

60 from Notice to
Proceed

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to use State Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane
Builders, Inc. for the renovation of the first floor of the Globe Courthouse
building.

Background Information
In 2013, the Board of Supervisors asked staff to identify space options in
an attempt to alleviate overcrowding. Various alternatives for acquiring
additional office space have been explored. In recent years the second floor
of the Courthouse was remodeled and the School Superintendent's Office
moved from the first floor to the second floor. This gave the County
Attorney room to move the staff from the Michaelson building to the
Courthouse so all of the staff was in the same area. Planning had been
ongoing but was on hold until the Copper Building could be completed. In
January 2017, all of the remaining County Attorney staff was removed
from the Michaelson building in Globe and temporarily placed in an area
of the first floor at the Courthouse. It is not an ideal working space so the
quicker the remodel is completed, the better it will be for the public and
the employees.

The Justice Court has also been planning to rearrange its office space and
accommodate safer public access and more efficient work areas for staff.
Working on remodeling both offices at the same time will reduce
contractor mobilization costs and make the HVAC system renovations
complete at the same time. Climate control has been an issue for years
with small office remodels affecting, but not addressing the entire first
floor HVAC system.

Equally important to the above issues, this tenant improvement addresses



the necessary security for the County Attorney, Justice Court offices and
improves the south elevator security for the Sheriff Detention staff and
inmates during transport.

Evaluation
Designing the space for the Globe Courthouse first floor to accommodate
the County Attorney from the Michaelson building and remodeling the
Justice Court to enhance the flow of work and public traffic in its offices
has been in progress since 2016. The design work was planned with the
assistance of an architect and the final drawings were  accepted by the
County Attorney and Justice Court. The Public Works Facilities staff
sought a proposal from SD Crane Builders because of the previous
projects' successes. The attached proposal was submitted by SD Crane
Builders and confirmed by the Gordian Group in the amount of
$369,880.20 for the work that will be required on the project. Public
Works Facilities will add an additional ten percent (10%) to the cost for
contingency only to be expensed with prior authorization of the County
Project Manager. With job order contracting contingency it has only been
used for the unknowns on the previous projects, not what was missed by
the contractor.

Conclusion
The Public Works Facilities team has concluded that the most viable,
direct route of accomplishing the County's objectives in completing a fully
functional Courthouse building can be obtained by utilizing a cooperative
contract with the State of Arizona Procurement Office with SD Crane
Builders, Inc., a General Contractor, for the construction of interior
improvements and all associated facets of construction.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director
recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve the use of the State of
Arizona Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD
Crane Builders, Inc. for the construction of interior improvements,
exterior improvements and all associated facets of remodel on the
Courthouse building.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the State of Arizona
Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane
Builders, Inc. for the construction of interior improvements, exterior
improvements and all associated facets of remodel on the Globe
Courthouse building in the amount of $369,880.20 with estimated
completion 60 days from the date of the "Notice to Proceed" issued by the
County to SD Crane Builders, Inc.  (James Menlove/Steve Sanders)



Attachments
17-GilaCounty-0002.00 PriceProposalDetail
SummaryofCostsforGeneralEZIQCProjects 17-GilaCounty-0002.00
Drawings A1 - A7 2-8-2017
ADSPO12-013788 Change Order Summary - 1.31.2017



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Globe Court House remodelJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO11-013788-ez

17-GilaCounty-0002.00

March 08, 2017

Per plans and specifications provided by Gila CountyDetailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Contractor:

Globe Court House remodel

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$336,254.73

01 - General Requirements: $51,226.60

05 - Metals: $218.03

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $29,952.96

08 - Openings: $36,201.06

09 - Finishes: $116,953.46

13 - Special Construction: $1,583.23

21 - Fire Suppression: $6,982.00

22 - Plumbing: $15,333.67

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $34,382.07

26 - Electrical: $43,421.65

$336,254.73Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

March 08, 2017

17-GilaCounty-0002.00

ADSPO11-013788-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Globe Court House remodel

1.0500-Option 4 - Non Pre-Priced, 1.1760-Option 4 - Owner-Funded Projects Normal Working 

Hours

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Globe Court House remodel

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$336,254.73

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

1 $4,793.27EA

Installation =x x $4,793.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 4,565.02

User Note: Bond

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

2 $1,011.51EA

Installation =x x $1,011.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 963.34

User Note: Builders Risk

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

3 $5,250.00EA

Installation =x x $5,250.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 5,000.00

User Note: Fire Alarm allowance

 2.00

Page 1 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

4 $18,922.93EA

Installation =x x $18,922.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 18,021.84

User Note: Tax

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

5 $1,837.50EA

Installation =x x $1,837.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 1,750.00

User Note: Fire Sprinkler permit and design.

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

6 $10,500.00EA

Installation =x x $10,500.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 10,000.00

User Note: Allowance for the use of Stanley Security to install all security access as called per plans. any unused 

allowance will be returned to the County.

01  22   20   00 0010 ElectricianNote: Tasks in the CTC include appropriate costs to cover labor. 

These tasks will be requested specifically by the owner for miscellaneous 

work not covered in the CTC.

7 $1,499.26HR

Installation =x x $1,499.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$39.84 32.00

User Note: two days of investigative work per the conversation during the job walk about the existing electrical system.

01  22   20   00 0010 For Foreman, Add8 Mod $37.44HR

Installation =x x $37.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.99 16.00

User Note: two days of investigative work per the conversation during the job walk about the existing electrical system.

Page 2 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   20   00 0029 Sheet Metal WorkerNote: Tasks in the CTC include appropriate costs to cover 

labor. These tasks will be requested specifically by the owner for 

miscellaneous work not covered in the CTC.

9 $3,570.52HR

Installation =x x $3,570.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$47.44 64.00

User Note: rework of the 2 units to go from the floor to the limited above ceiling space. Requesting Owner approval for 

this line item due to the unique scope of this work.

01  22   20   00 0029 For Foreman, Add10 Mod $89.19HR

Installation =x x $89.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2.37 32.00

User Note: rework of the 2 units to go from the floor to the limited above ceiling space. Requesting Owner approval for 

this line item due to the unique scope of this work.

01  56   16   00 0014 5/8" Gypsum Board On One Side, Temporary Stud WallNote: Wood studs at 16" 

OC, taped and finished, one coat of flat paint. Remove after use.

11 $3,714.98SF

Installation =x x $3,714.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2.43 1,300.00

User Note: Build temporary construction wall to keep construction separate from daily building use.

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $51,226.60

05 - Metals

05  12   23   00 0401 2" x 2" x 1/4" Angle Iron12 $218.03LF

Installation =x x $218.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$6.18 30.00

User Note: support to hang the unit is the existing ceiling space.

Subtotal for 05 - Metals: $218.03

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  11   13   00 0007 Two 2"x6" (5cm x 15cm) Built-up Post13 $114.03LF

Installation =x x $114.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2.02 48.00

User Note: post at the end of the low walls framing out to the existing deck.

06  11   16   00 0057 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Wall Framing At 16" On Center14 $305.88SF

Installation =x x $305.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.85 306.00

User Note: Low wall framing

06  11   16   00 0057 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Wall Framing At 16" On Center15 $5,108.59SF

Installation =x x $3,731.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.85 3,732.75

Demolition x x = $1,377.33 1.1760$0.32 3,660.00

User Note: Remove existing walls and frame new walls per plans.

06  11   16   00 0058 2"x6" (5cm x 15cm) Wall Framing At 16" On Center16 $3,609.85SF

Installation =x x $3,609.85
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.20 2,558.00

User Note: new framing. sound walls figured to deck.

Page 3 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  16   33   00 0011 1/2" (12mm) Interior BC Plywood Wall SheathingNote: Applied To Wall Studs17 $142.30SF

Installation =x x $142.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.21 100.00

User Note: backing for millwork

06  41   13   00 0004 Up To 15" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

18 $804.56EA

Installation =x x $804.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$228.05 3.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0004 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add19 Mod $138.16EA

Installation =x x $138.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$39.16 3.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0004 For 3 Drawer Unit, Add20 Mod $184.21EA

Installation =x x $184.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$78.32 2.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0004 Up To 15" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

21 $268.19EA

Installation =x x $268.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$228.05 1.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0004 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add22 Mod $46.05EA

Installation =x x $46.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$39.16 1.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0004 Up To 15" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

23 $804.56EA

Installation =x x $804.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$228.05 3.00

User Note: City Attorney Reception

06  41   13   00 0004 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add24 Mod $138.16EA

Installation =x x $138.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$39.16 3.00

User Note: City Attorney Reception

06  41   13   00 0004 For 3 Drawer Unit, Add25 Mod $92.10EA

Installation =x x $92.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$78.32 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Reception

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

26 $877.94EA

Installation =x x $877.94
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$248.85 3.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy

Page 4 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0005 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add27 Mod $147.68EA

Installation =x x $147.68
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$41.86 3.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy

06  41   13   00 0005 For 3 Drawer Unit, Add28 Mod $98.45EA

Installation =x x $98.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$83.72 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

29 $292.65EA

Installation =x x $292.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$248.85 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Reception

06  41   13   00 0005 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add30 Mod $49.23EA

Installation =x x $49.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$41.86 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Reception

06  41   13   00 0005 For 3 Drawer Unit, Add31 Mod $98.45EA

Installation =x x $98.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$83.72 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Reception

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

32 $585.30EA

Installation =x x $585.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$248.85 2.00

User Note: JP Reception

06  41   13   00 0005 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add33 Mod $49.23EA

Installation =x x $49.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$41.86 1.00

User Note: JP Reception

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

34 $585.30EA

Installation =x x $585.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$248.85 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0005 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add35 Mod $98.45EA

Installation =x x $98.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$41.86 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0005 For 3 Drawer Unit, Add36 Mod $196.91EA

Installation =x x $196.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$83.72 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

Page 5 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

37 $4,097.07EA

Installation =x x $4,097.07
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$248.85 14.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy Scan File

06  41   13   00 0005 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add38 Mod $689.18EA

Installation =x x $689.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$41.86 14.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy Scan File

06  41   13   00 0005 For 3 Drawer Unit, Add39 Mod $787.64EA

Installation =x x $787.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$83.72 8.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy Scan File

06  41   13   00 0007 >21"-24" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

40 $711.81EA

Installation =x x $711.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$302.64 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0007 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add41 Mod $117.62EA

Installation =x x $117.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$50.01 2.00

06  41   13   00 0007 >21"-24" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

42 $355.90EA

Installation =x x $355.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$302.64 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0007 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add43 Mod $58.81EA

Installation =x x $58.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$50.01 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0023 >33"-36" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

44 $477.27EA

Installation =x x $477.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$405.84 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0023 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add45 Mod $79.40EA

Installation =x x $79.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$67.52 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0023 >33"-36" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

46 $954.54EA

Installation =x x $954.54
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$405.84 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

Page 6 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0023 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add47 Mod $158.81EA

Installation =x x $158.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$67.52 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0023 For Sink Base With Sink Front (No Drawer), Deduct48 Mod -$59.55EA

Installation =x x $-59.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-50.64 1.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0058 12"-15" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

49 $199.09EA

Installation =x x $199.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$169.29 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0059 15"-18" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

50 $434.11EA

Installation =x x $434.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$184.57 2.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy Scan File

06  41   13   00 0059 15"-18" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

51 $217.05EA

Installation =x x $217.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$184.57 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy

06  41   13   00 0062 Up To 27" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

52 $261.44EA

Installation =x x $261.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$222.31 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0062 Up To 27" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

53 $522.87EA

Installation =x x $522.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$222.31 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0063 27"-30" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

54 $279.58EA

Installation =x x $279.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$237.74 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

55 $314.92EA

Installation =x x $314.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$267.79 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy

Page 7 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

56 $629.84EA

Installation =x x $629.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$267.79 2.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

57 $1,889.53EA

Installation =x x $1,889.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$267.79 6.00

User Note: City Attorney Copy Scan File

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

58 $314.92EA

Installation =x x $314.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$267.79 1.00

User Note: City Attorney Breakroom

06  41   13   00 0099 Base Corner CabinetNote: Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, 

hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels.

59 $221.53EA

Installation =x x $221.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$188.38 1.00

User Note: JP Reception

06  41   13   00 0099 Base Corner CabinetNote: Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, 

hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels.

60 $221.53EA

Installation =x x $221.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$188.38 1.00

User Note: JP Breakroom

06  42   19   00 0002 1/16" Plastic Laminate, Includes Cutting To Fit61 $1,181.82SF

Installation =x x $1,181.82
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$5.05 199.00

User Note: countertops for all the millwork.

Subtotal for 06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $29,952.96

08 - Openings

08  05   13   00 0006 For > 6 To 8 SF, Factory Installed 20 Gauge Metal Frame For Vision Glass In 

Door, Add

62 $558.84EA

Installation =x x $558.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$158.40 3.00

User Note: Per door schedule

08  05   13   00 0008 For > 10 SF, Factory Installed 20 Gauge Metal Frame For Vision Glass In Door, 

Add

63 $504.50EA

Installation =x x $504.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$214.50 2.00

User Note: Per door schedule

Page 8 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  12   13   13 0036 3'x6'-8" Through 7'-2"x5-3/4" Deep Metal Door Frame, 16 Gauge64 $3,044.81EA

Installation =x x $2,391.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$203.36 10.00

Demolition x x = $653.29 1.1760$39.68 14.00

User Note: New frames.

08  12   13   13 0036 For Welded Frames, Add65 Mod $529.20EA

Installation =x x $529.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$45.00 10.00

User Note: New frames.

08  12   13   13 0036 For 14 Gauge Frame, Add66 Mod $364.56EA

Installation =x x $364.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$31.00 10.00

User Note: New frames.

08  12   13   13 0065 3'x6'-8" Through 7'-2"x6-3/4" Deep Metal Door Frame, 16 Gauge67 $324.18EA

Installation =x x $324.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$275.66 1.00

User Note: at the 2x6 framed walls

08  12   13   13 0065 For Welded Frames, Add68 Mod $52.92EA

Installation =x x $52.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$45.00 1.00

User Note: at the 2x6 framed walls

08  12   13   13 0065 For 14 Gauge Frame, Add69 Mod $57.72EA

Installation =x x $57.72
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$49.08 1.00

User Note: at the 2x6 framed walls

08  12   13   13 0071 6'x6'-8" Through 7'-2"x6-3/4" Deep Metal Door Frame, 16 Gauge70 $394.47EA

Installation =x x $394.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$335.43 1.00

User Note: at the 2x6 framed walls

08  12   13   13 0071 For Welded Frames, Add71 Mod $52.92EA

Installation =x x $52.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$45.00 1.00

User Note: at the 2x6 framed walls

08  12   13   13 0071 For 14 Gauge Frame, Add72 Mod $68.29EA

Installation =x x $68.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$58.07 1.00

User Note: Per Specifications

08  12   13   13 0099 5-3/4" Deep Sidelights, 16 Gauge Frame73 $3,048.76SF

Installation =x x $3,048.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$29.46 88.00

User Note: HW frames for the windows.

08  12   13   13 0099 For 14 Gauge Frame, Add74 Mod $464.66SF

Installation =x x $464.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$4.49 88.00

User Note: HW frames for the windows.

Page 9 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  14   16   00 0129 3'x7'x1-3/4" Solid Core, Birch Faced Door75 $2,447.14EA

Installation =x x $2,055.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$145.63 12.00

Demolition x x = $392.01 1.1760$23.81 14.00

User Note: New doors per specs and door schedule.

08  14   16   00 0129 For Commercial Grade 3/4 Hour Fire Rated Door, Add76 Mod $746.95EA

Installation =x x $746.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$52.93 12.00

User Note: Commercial grade door.

08  14   16   00 0134 Pair 3'x7'x1-3/4" Solid Core, Birch Faced Door77 $336.92PR

Installation =x x $336.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$286.50 1.00

User Note: New WD 2 door per door schedule.

08  14   16   00 0134 For Commercial Grade 3/4 Hour Fire Rated Door, Add78 Mod $124.49PR

Installation =x x $124.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$105.86 1.00

User Note: Commercial grade door.

08  16   13   00 0192 1/4" Tempered, Factory Installed Vision Glass (Skule Door)79 $337.56SI

Installation =x x $337.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.52 552.00

User Note: Glass in the WD 2 and WD 3 doors per the door schedule.

08  34   73   00 0006 Up To 3'x 7' Steel, 52 STC Rating Acoustical Door80 $4,835.67EA

Installation =x x $4,835.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$4,111.96 1.00

User Note: 1 sound doors. The second sound door has been removed at the Owners request.

08  41   00   00 0002 3'x7'x1-3/4" Medium Stile, Aluminum Framed Entrance Doors Including Glazing, 

Trim And Hardware (Special-Lite SL-14)

81 $970.18EA

Installation =x x $0.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2,293.26 0.00

Demolition x x = $970.18 1.1760$412.49 2.00

User Note: demo Storefront per plans and job walk.

08  43   13   00 0002 Aluminum Storefront Framing82 $2,619.54SF

Installation =x x $0.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$13.40 0.00

Demolition x x = $2,619.54 1.1760$2.97 750.00

User Note: demo Storefront per plans and job walk.

08  71   16   00 0027 4-1/2" x 4-1/2" Heavy Duty, Full Mortise, Plain Bearing, Brass/Bronze, Satin 

Chrome Finish Hinge

83 $1,773.01PR

Installation =x x $1,665.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$72.61 19.50

Demolition x x = $107.92 1.1760$4.37 21.00

User Note: Install new per specs. remove old hardware.

08  71   16   00 0027 For Clear Coated Bright Brass, Add84 Mod $160.29PR

Installation =x x $160.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$6.99 19.50

User Note: Install new per specs

Page 10 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  71   16   00 0459 2-1/8" Overall Height, Satin Bronze Finish, Brass Floor Stop (Ives FS441)85 $377.92EA

Installation =x x $377.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$26.78 12.00

User Note: Install new per specs

08  71   16   00 0927 12" x 36", 0.050" Thick, Bright/Satin Brass Finish, Brass Kick Plate86 $2,115.67EA

Installation =x x $2,115.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$112.44 16.00

User Note: figuring both sides

08  71   16   00 0927 For Four Beveled Edges, Add87 Mod $33.12EA

Installation =x x $33.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.76 16.00

User Note: figuring both sides

08  71   16   00 2155 Surface Mounted Heavy Duty Door Closer - LCN 4040/4041 Series88 $3,883.76EA

Installation =x x $3,883.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$275.21 12.00

User Note: specs call for this.

08  71   16   00 2155 For Plated Brass Finish, Add89 Mod $1,430.96EA

Installation =x x $1,430.96
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$101.40 12.00

User Note: to match existing hardware in the building.

08  71   16   00 2194 Heavy Duty Cylindrical Passage Or Closet Lockset F75Note: Satin chrome 

plated US 26D (BHMA 626) - BHMA 156.2-1989, Grade 1(Corbin Russwin CL 

3600)

90 $831.74EA

Installation =x x $668.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$189.46 3.00

Demolition x x = $163.32 1.1760$9.92 14.00

User Note: Hardware group 3. Remove old hardware.

08  71   16   00 2198 Heavy Duty Cylindrical Storeroom Or Closet Lockset F86Note: Satin chrome 

plated US 26D (BHMA 626) - BHMA 156.2-1989, Grade 1(Corbin Russwin CL 

3600)

91 $2,373.25EA

Installation =x x $2,373.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$224.23 9.00

User Note: hardware groups 1, 2, and 4.

08  81   26   00 0047 1/4" Thick, Laminated Glass With PVB Interlayer, Field Installed Glass92 $1,359.83SF

Installation =x x $1,359.83
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$13.14 88.00

User Note: new glass a the windows

08  81   26   00 0047 For Quantities > 50 To 200 (> 4.7 m2 To 18.6 m2), Deduct93 Mod -$22.77SF

Installation =x x $-22.77
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.22 88.00

User Note: new glass a the windows

Subtotal for 08 - Openings: $36,201.06

09 - Finishes

Page 11 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  23   13   00 0014 Skim Coat One Coat On Wall Plaster94 $807.21SF

Installation =x x $807.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.52 1,320.00

User Note: Skim the walls to remain in hallway 301, lobby 300, and waiting 200 as discussed during the job walk.

09  23   13   00 0014 For Quantities > 500 To 2500, Deduct95 Mod -$77.62SF

Installation =x x $-77.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.05 1,320.00

User Note: Skim the walls to remain in hallway 301, lobby 300, and waiting 200 as discussed during the job walk.

09  23   13   00 0015 For Each Additional Coat Over 1, Skim Coat Plaster96 $589.88SF

Installation =x x $589.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.38 1,320.00

User Note: Skim the walls to remain in hallway 301, lobby 300, and waiting 200 as discussed during the job walk.

09  23   13   00 0015 For Quantities > 500 To 2500, Deduct97 Mod -$46.57SF

Installation =x x $-46.57
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.03 1,320.00

User Note: Skim the walls to remain in hallway 301, lobby 300, and waiting 200 as discussed during the job walk.

09  29   00   00 0005 1/2" Drywall, One Layer, One Face On Wood Or Metal Studs Or Furring98 $6,376.33SF

Installation =x x $4,654.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.60 6,596.75

Demolition x x = $1,721.66 1.1760$0.20 7,320.00

User Note: new drywall on the new wood framing per plans and specs.

09  29   00   00 0005 For Wall Height > 12', Add99 Mod $73.76SF

Installation =x x $73.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.04 1,568.00

User Note: drywall to deck at sound walls.

09  29   00   00 0013 5/8" Fire Rated Drywall, One Layer, One Face On Wood Or Metal Studs Or 

Furring

100 $1,493.61SF

Installation =x x $1,493.61
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.81 1,568.00

User Note: For the sound proofing shown in the specifications. All 5/8 drywall is fire rated.

09  29   00   00 0013 For Wall Height > 12', Add101 Mod $92.20SF

Installation =x x $92.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.05 1,568.00

User Note: drywall to deck at sound walls.

09  29   00   00 0046 Tape, Spackle And Finish Drywall Walls Up To 10' Height102 $2,327.33SF

Installation =x x $2,327.33
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.30 6,596.75

User Note: New drywall

09  29   00   00 0046 For ASTM C840 Level 1 Finish, Deduct103 Mod -$258.16SF

Installation =x x $-258.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.14 1,568.00

User Note: level one finish at sound wall.

09  29   00   00 0046 For ASTM C840 Level 5 High Quality Finish, Add104 Mod $1,064.49SF

Installation =x x $1,064.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.18 5,028.75

User Note: match existing finish.

Page 12 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  29   00   00 0056 Tape, Spackle And Finish Vertical Corners Up To 10' HeightNote: Inside or 

outside drywall corners.

105 $1,334.29LF

Installation =x x $1,334.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.62 1,830.00

User Note: New drywall

09  29   00   00 0056 For ASTM C840 Level 5 High Quality Finish, Add106 Mod $796.27LF

Installation =x x $796.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.37 1,830.00

User Note: match existing finish.

09  29   00   00 0061 Tape, Spackle And Finish Horizontal Drywall Corners Up To 10' Height.Note: 

Inside or outside drywall corners.

107 $1,012.81LF

Installation =x x $1,012.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.71 1,213.00

User Note: New drywall

09  29   00   00 0061 For ASTM C840 Level 5 High Quality Finish, Add108 Mod $613.39LF

Installation =x x $613.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.43 1,213.00

User Note: match existing finish.

09  29   00   00 0071 Casing, J-Bead For Gypsum Wallboard109 $3,271.16LF

Installation =x x $3,271.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.52 1,830.00

User Note: New drywall

09  30   13   00 0001 Mounted Floor Tile, Less Than 8"x8"Note: Includes glazed porcelain, unglazed 

porcelain and glazed ceramic tiles.  Tiles mounted from back, side or front in 

12"x12", 12"x24", or similar sized sheets.

110 $401.02SF

Installation =x x $0.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$6.31 0.00

Demolition x x = $401.02 1.1760$1.10 310.00

User Note: Existing Tile removal

09  30   13   00 0002 Unmounted Floor Tile, 8"x8" And LargerNote: Includes glazed porcelain, 

unglazed porcelain and glazed ceramic tiles.

111 $383.05SF

Installation =x x $0.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$6.85 0.00

Demolition x x = $383.05 1.1760$0.68 479.00

User Note: Existing Tile removal

09  51   13   00 0020 2' x 4' x 3/4" Mineral Fiber Acoustical Ceiling Panels112 $14,188.20SF

Installation =x x $12,210.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.42 7,312.00

Demolition x x = $1,977.75 1.1760$0.23 7,312.00

User Note: Remove and reinstall new 5974 SF in space to be remodeled, and an additional 1338 SF in hallway 303

09  51   13   00 0020 For Fire Rated Panels, Add113 Mod $3,783.52SF

Installation =x x $3,783.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.44 7,312.00

User Note: Per product specifications this is  a class a fire rating.

09  51   13   00 0020 For Quantities > 5000, Deduct114 Mod -$687.91SF

Installation =x x $-687.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.08 7,312.00

User Note: Remove and reinstall new

Page 13 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  51   13   00 0020 For Individual Room Quantities < 495, AddNote: For Use With Projects > 500 SF115 Mod $1,031.87SF

Installation =x x $1,031.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.12 7,312.00

User Note: Remove and reinstall new

09  51   13   00 0020 For Single Angled Tegular Edge (Reveal), Add116 Mod $4,127.48SF

Installation =x x $4,127.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.48 7,312.00

User Note: Per specifications

09  51   13   00 0020 For Scored Acoustical Tile, Add117 Mod $2,149.73SF

Installation =x x $2,149.73
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.25 7,312.00

User Note: Per specifications

09  53   23   00 0004 T Bar Ceilings Suspension System 2'x 4', Standard 15/16"118 $12,013.48SF

Installation =x x $10,608.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.51 5,974.00

Demolition x x = $1,405.08 1.1760$0.20 5,974.00

User Note: Remove and reinstall new.

09  53   23   00 0004 For Individual Room Quantities < 495, AddNote: For Use With Projects > 500 SF119 Mod $473.63SF

Installation =x x $473.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.15 2,685.00

User Note: Per the room layout on the reflected ceiling plan.

09  53   23   00 0004 For Quantities > 4000 To 5000, Deduct120 Mod -$421.53SF

Installation =x x $-421.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.06 5,974.00

User Note: Remove and reinstall new.

09  53   23   00 0016 For Pencil Rod Support With Accessories And Attachments (Seismic Control Or 

Where Required)

121 $449.47LF

Installation =x x $449.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.35 1,092.00

User Note: Figuring 6' for each location and figuring 2 at each light. Grid suspension excludes lighting.

09  65   13   13 0007 4" High 1/8" Rubber Base, Group 2 All (Except White)122 $3,458.09LF

Installation =x x $2,846.57
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.65 1,467.00

Demolition x x = $611.52 1.1760$0.52 1,000.00

User Note: new rubber base.

09  65   19   00 0010 Skid Resistant Surface, Solid Vinyl Floor Tile, 1/8" Thick123 $21,170.01SF

Installation =x x $21,170.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$5.49 3,279.00

User Note: New LVT. I also added in hallways 214 and 213.

09  65   19   00 0010 For Quantities > 3000 To 6000, Deduct124 Mod -$732.66SF

Installation =x x $-732.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.19 3,279.00

User Note: New LVT. I also added in hallways 214 and 213.

Page 14 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  65   19   00 0010 Skid Resistant Surface, Solid Vinyl Floor Tile, 1/8" Thick125 $1,878.31SF

Installation =x x $1,878.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Labor  1.1760$4.84 330.00

User Note: Attic stock

09  65   19   00 0012 Vinyl Transition Strip, Brown Or Black126 $102.31LF

Installation =x x $102.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.16 75.00

User Note: new transition strips.

09  68   13   00 0006 26 Ounce, Non-Patterned, Nylon Carpet Tile127 $3,072.97SY

Installation =x x $3,072.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$39.20 66.66

User Note: New carpet tile in the grand jury room.

09  68   13   00 0006 26 Ounce, Non-Patterned, Nylon Carpet Tile128 $260.58SY

Installation =x x $260.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Equipment

Excludes 

Labor  1.1760$33.27 6.66

User Note: Attic stock

09  68   16   00 0025 26 Ounce, Medium Traffic, Non-Patterned, Nylon Broadloom Carpet129 $134.87SY

Installation =x x $134.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Equipment

Excludes 

Labor  1.1760$17.22 6.66

User Note: Attic stock

09  68   16   00 0025 26 Ounce, Medium Traffic, Non-Patterned, Nylon Broadloom Carpet130 $8,444.84SY

Installation =x x $3,656.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$23.84 130.44

Demolition x x = $4,787.85 1.1760$9.93 410.00

User Note: New Brodloom.

09  81   16   00 0010 6" Thick, 2.5 PCF Density, Sound Attenuation Fire Blanket (Thermafiber SAFB)131 $4,769.10SF

Installation =x x $4,769.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1.52 2,668.00

User Note: Framing and sound insulation will be done to the deck. This also includes the sound batts in the ceiling that 

are to be cut to the size of the acoustical tile.

09  91   23   00 0062 Paint Interior Plaster/Drywall, 1 Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work132 $4,525.93SF

Installation =x x $4,525.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.27 14,254.00

User Note: painting per finish schedule.

09  91   23   00 0062 For Quantities > 5000 To 10000, Deduct133 Mod -$502.88SF

Installation =x x $-502.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.03 14,254.00

User Note: painting per finish schedule.

09  91   23   00 0064 Paint Interior Plaster/Drywall, 2 Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work134 $9,219.49SF

Installation =x x $9,219.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.55 14,254.00

User Note: painting per finish schedule.

09  91   23   00 0064 For Each Coat With Egg Shell Finish, Add135 Mod $167.63SF

Installation =x x $167.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.01 14,254.00

User Note: painting per finish schedule.

Page 15 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  91   23   00 0064 For Quantities > 10000 To 20000, Deduct136 Mod -$1,341.02SF

Installation =x x $-1,341.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.08 14,254.00

User Note: painting per finish schedule.

09  91   23   00 0246 Paint Interior Metal Frame And Trim, 1 Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work137 $123.72LF

Installation =x x $123.72
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.40 263.00

User Note: painting of the door and window frames.

09  91   23   00 0248 Paint Interior Metal Frame And Trim, 2 Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work138 $269.08LF

Installation =x x $269.08
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.87 263.00

User Note: painting of the door and window frames.

09  91   43   00 0013 Hand Wash, Minor Repair And Light Sanding Drywall Surfaces139 $1,260.67SF

Installation =x x $1,260.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.20 5,360.00

User Note: Prep existing wall that will be painted per the finish schedule.

09  91   43   00 0013 For Quantities > 5000 To 10000, Deduct140 Mod -$63.03SF

Installation =x x $-63.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.01 5,360.00

User Note: Prep existing wall that will be painted per the finish schedule.

09  91   43   00 0065 Hot PatchNote: Includes wall patching, prime and paint.141 $3,373.06SF

Installation =x x $3,373.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$16.39 175.00

User Note: patch all new cut ins in existing walls.

Subtotal for 09 - Finishes: $116,953.46

13 - Special Construction

13  01   11   00 0007 Coring For Pipe Penetrations142 $1,583.23EA

Installation =x x $1,583.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$224.38 6.00

User Note: coring to run new line sets and condensate lines to the exterior of the building.

Subtotal for 13 - Special Construction: $1,583.23

21 - Fire Suppression

21  01   10   00 0004 Bleed Existing Lines Of Water143 $493.92LF

Installation =x x $493.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.28 1,500.00

User Note: Rework of the sprinkler system to fit the new office layout.

21  01   10   00 0005 Refill Existing Lines With Water144 $599.76LF

Installation =x x $599.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.34 1,500.00

User Note: Rework of the sprinkler system to fit the new office layout.

Page 16 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

21 - Fire Suppression

21  13   13   00 0004 Concealed Piping, Wet Automatic Sprinkler System, Light HazardNote: Includes 

branch pipe and fittings, supports and sprinkler heads with flat or conical 

escutcheon.

145 $5,758.05EA

Installation =x x $5,758.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$326.42 15.00

User Note: Rework of the sprinkler system to fit the new office layout.

21  21   16   00 0004 Carbon Dioxide Cylinder, Heat/Ion Detector, With Bracket146 $130.27EA

Installation =x x $130.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$110.77 1.00

User Note: Per Owners request this will be installed at the Grand jury room. This unit will be a stand alone sensor.

Subtotal for 21 - Fire Suppression: $6,982.00

22 - Plumbing

22  11   16   00 0566 1/2" Inside Diameter (12 mm) Copper Pipe/Tubing Type L AssemblyNote: Prices 

Include All Hangers And Couplings, Elbow, Tee, Reducer Fittings. All Hangers 

Are Complete Assemblies

147 $556.01LF

Installation =x x $556.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$11.82 40.00

User Note: Minimal piping for hot and cold water. It is assumed that the needed plumbing is close or in wall to these 2 

locations.

22  11   16   00 0566 1/2" Inside Diameter (12 mm) Copper Pipe/Tubing Type L AssemblyNote: Prices 

Include All Hangers And Couplings, Elbow, Tee, Reducer Fittings. All Hangers 

Are Complete Assemblies

148 $5,838.13LF

Installation =x x $5,838.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$11.82 420.00

User Note: new line sets and condensate lines to be run for the split systems. also including to rerun the copper new to 

the existing air handlers.

22  11   16   00 0566 For Type M Tubing Instead Of Type L, Deduct149 Mod -$355.62LF

Installation =x x $-355.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$-0.72 420.00

User Note: new line sets and condensate lines to be run for the split systems. also including to rerun the copper new to 

the existing air handlers.

22  11   23   39 0027 1-1/2 HP Cast Iron In-Line Pump, 3" Flanges (B&G PD40S)150 $6,511.11EA

Installation =x x $6,511.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2,768.33 2.00

User Note: Trash Pump

22  13   13   00 0008 Rough-in Kitchen Sink, (Counter), Single Fixture, Includes Cast Iron Waste Pipe 

And Vent And Copper Domestic Supply, Excludes Fixture Or Faucet

151 $956.09EA

Installation =x x $956.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$406.50 2.00

User Note: New plumbing fixtures as seen in the elevations.

22  13   16   00 0988 3" (76 mm) ABS-PVC DWV Pipe Schedule 40 Pipe AssemblyNote: Includes all 

fittings, couplings and hangers.  Fittings are assumed every 10'.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

152 $396.08LF

Installation =x x $396.08
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$16.84 20.00

User Note: Minimal piping for drain lines.

Page 17 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

22 - Plumbing

22  42   16   00 0064 22"x22"x7-1/4" Stainless Steel Kitchen Sink, Single Bowl, 20 Gauge (Elkay 

PSR2222)

153 $1,048.00EA

Installation =x x $1,048.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$445.58 2.00

User Note: New plumbing fixtures as seen in the elevations.

22  42   39   00 0008 Top Cast Kitchen Faucet, Two Handle, Chrome Finish, Center Gooseneck 

Faucet, Lever Handles, Delta 2176-LHP+H24

154 $383.87EA

Installation =x x $383.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$163.21 2.00

User Note: New plumbing fixtures as seen in the elevations.

Subtotal for 22 - Plumbing: $15,333.67

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  05   48   00 0007 50-500# Rated Spring And Rubber Hanger For Vibration Isolation With 3/4" Max 

Rod Size

155 $1,132.91EA

Installation =x x $1,132.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$80.28 12.00

User Note: vibration isolator

23  05   93   00 0015 Balancing HVAC Duct System, Ceiling Height To 12' Supply, Return, Exhaust, 

Register And Diffuser

156 $2,586.80EA

Installation =x x $2,586.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$36.06 61.00

User Note: Comfort blancing

23  07   13   00 0010 1-1/2" Type 100 (1.0 LB/CF) FSK Fiber Glass Duct Wrap Insulation157 $1,889.24SF

Installation =x x $1,889.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2.55 630.00

User Note: figuring to add 100 LF of 24"x14" duct. basing this off the plans that have been provided, no specific duct 

size has been given.

23  09   23   00 0603 Electronic Non-Programmable Heat/Cool Fan Coil Unit Thermostat (Honeywell 

T8575D)

158 $262.73EA

Installation =x x $156.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Material  1.1760$44.28 3.00

Demolition x x = $106.51 1.1760$30.19 3.00

User Note: relocate.

23  09   23   00 0930 20"x20" Low Leakage Volume Control Damper (Johnson Controls 

VOPSN-020X020)

159 $3,152.97EA

Installation =x x $3,152.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$178.74 15.00

User Note: install new

23  31   13   13 0006 Sheet Metal Ductwork, Low Pressure, Shop Fabricated, Galvanized, Field 

Assemble And Install

160 $3,843.79LB

Installation =x x $3,843.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$3.69 885.78

User Note: figuring to add 100 LF of 24"x14" duct. basing this off the plans that have been provided, no specific duct 

size has been given.

Page 18 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  31   13   13 0006 For Quantities > 500 Lb. To 1000 Lb. (> 227 kg to 454 kg), Add161 Mod $656.26LB

Installation =x x $656.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.63 885.78

User Note: figuring to add 100 LF of 24"x14" duct. basing this off the plans that have been provided, no specific duct 

size has been given.

23  33   46   00 0004 6" Diameter Flexible Duct, Factory Fabricated, Preinsulated162 $126.54LF

Installation =x x $126.54
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$5.38 20.00

User Note: new duct for the grand Jury room.

23  33   46   00 0008 12" Diameter Flexible Duct, Factory Fabricated, Preinsulated163 $1,724.49LF

Installation =x x $1,724.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$12.22 120.00

User Note: estimating 8' per location to be demoed and install new flex duct at each of the 15 locations of the air 

supplies.

23  34   16   00 0173 Up To 10" Wheel Diameter, 1/16 HP, In-Line Duct FanNote: Direct drive. 115V. 

Includes disconnect switch.

164 $765.34EA

Installation =x x $765.34
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$650.80 1.00

User Note: outside air for the mini split.

23  37   13   00 0037 24" x 24" Ceiling Diffuser, Louver Face, Adjustable Pattern, Surface Mounted,

Aluminum Construction With

Damper

165 $2,144.85EA

Installation =x x $2,144.85
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$121.59 15.00

User Note: Per the plans provided by the County and the job walk we are assuming we may need to add 15 air 

supplies.

23  37   13   00 0037 For Lay-In Mount, Add166 Mod $249.43EA

Installation =x x $249.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$14.14 15.00

User Note: Per the plans provided by the County and the job walk we are assuming we may need to relocate 15 air 

supplies.

23  37   13   00 0037 24" x 24" Ceiling Diffuser, Louver Face, Adjustable Pattern, Surface Mounted,

Aluminum Construction With

Damper

167 $2,782.32EA

Installation =x x $1,855.61
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Material  1.1760$50.90 31.00

Demolition x x = $926.71 1.1760$25.42 31.00

User Note: remove and reinstall

23  37   13   00 0079 24" x 24" Single Deflection Return/Exhaust Register, Aluminum, Opposed Blade 

Damper,

Wall/Ceiling

168 $334.95EA

Installation =x x $334.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$142.41 2.00

User Note: two new returns in the grand jury room

Page 19 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  37   13   00 0103 24" x 24" Double Deflection Return/Exhaust Register, Aluminum, Opposed Blade 

Damper,

Wall/Ceiling

169 $510.95EA

Installation =x x $406.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Material  1.1760$43.26 8.00

Demolition x x = $103.96 1.1760$11.05 8.00

User Note: Per the plans provided by the County and the job walk we are assuming we may need to relocate 8 air 

supplies.

23  81   13   00 0019 7-1/2 Ton Single Package Cooling, Vertical Wall Unit, Air To Air Type With 

Electric

Heat

170 $2,846.18EA

Installation =x x $1,897.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Material  1.1760$806.75 2.00

Demolition x x = $948.70 1.1760$403.36 2.00

User Note: remove and reinstall.

23  81   26   00 0006 17,500 BTU Wall Mounted Ductless Split System Air Conditioners, 20 

SEERIncludes indoor unit, outdoor unit, wireless thermostat and refrigerant 

charge.

171 $4,480.37EA

Installation =x x $4,480.37
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$1,904.92 2.00

User Note: These 2 units will be ceiling mounted per specifications.

23  81   29   00 0029 17,500 BTU Cooling, 20,400 BTU Heating Wall Mounted Ductless Split System 

Heat Pumps, 20 SEERIncludes indoor unit, outdoor unit, wireless thermostat and 

refrigerant charge.

172 $4,891.95EA

Installation =x x $4,891.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$2,079.91 2.00

User Note: These 2 units will be ceiling mounted per specifications.

Subtotal for 23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $34,382.07

26 - Electrical

26  05   29   00 0265 5/8" Diameter, Carbon Steel Threaded Rod173 $174.99LF

Installation =x x $174.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$3.10 48.00

User Note: rods to help support units

26  05   29   00 0281 5/8" Inside Diameter, Carbon Steel Flat Washer174 $13.55EA

Installation =x x $13.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.48 24.00

User Note: unit support

26  05   29   00 0295 5/8" Diameter, Carbon Steel Hex Nut175 $13.55EA

Installation =x x $13.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.48 24.00

User Note: unit support.

Page 20 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  05   33   13 0008 3/4" EMT With 4 #12 THHN/THWN AssemblyNote:  Includes conduit, set screw 

connectors, set screw couplings, straps, wire as indicated.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

176 $18,027.91CLF

Installation =x x $14,228.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$414.34 29.20

Demolition x x = $3,799.81 1.1760$148.90 21.70

User Note: remove old wiring for demolition and install new. remove all wiring prior to demolition for make safe. new 

wiring for the two mini splits.

26  05   33   13 0045 3/4" RGS Conduit With Coupling, Mounted Exposed On Flat Wall177 $1,030.18LF

Installation =x x $1,030.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$3.65 240.00

User Note: Conduit raceways for data

26  05   33   13 0045 For Installation In Wood Stud Wall, Includes Drilling, Add178 Mod $155.23LF

Installation =x x $155.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$0.55 240.00

User Note: Conduit raceways for data

26  05   33   16 0010 3"x2"x2-1/2" Steel Box With Cover, Drywall Only, Flush Mount179 $220.99EA

Installation =x x $220.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$7.83 24.00

User Note: Conduit raceways for data

26  27   23   00 0025 3" x 2-3/4", 10'-5" Height, Enamel Finish, Steel Communication And Power Pole180 $687.75EA

Installation =x x $687.75
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$292.41 2.00

User Note: per note on A3

26  27   26   00 0005 1 Gang, 20 A, NEMA 5-20, Duplex Receptacle AssemblyNote: Includes box, 

receptacle and cover plate

181 $3,829.10EA

Installation =x x $3,047.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$35.02 74.00

Demolition x x = $781.52 1.1760$9.23 72.00

User Note: New receptacles

26  27   26   00 0007 2 Gang, 20 A, NEMA 5-20, Duplex Receptacle AssemblyNote: Includes box, 

receptacle and cover plate

182 $357.27EA

Installation =x x $287.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$61.20 4.00

Demolition x x = $69.38 1.1760$14.75 4.00

User Note: New receptacles

26  27   26   00 0120 1 Gang, 20 A, 120/277 V, SPST, Switch AssemblyNote: Includes box, switch 

and cover plate

183 $1,553.54EA

Installation =x x $1,249.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$37.95 28.00

Demolition x x = $303.93 1.1760$9.23 28.00

User Note: new switch. Demo old prior to demo

26  51   13   00 0108 3 T8 Lamps, 2' x 2', Prismatic Lensed, Lay-In/Troffer Fluorescent Fixture184 $895.76EA

Installation =x x $809.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$137.66 5.00

Demolition x x = $86.32 1.1760$14.68 5.00

User Note: Remove old lighting and install new. Per a conversation with the Owner all lights are to be new.

Page 21 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  51   13   00 0113 3 T8 Lamps, 2' x 4', Prismatic Lensed, Lay-In/Troffer Fluorescent Fixture185 $13,947.67EA

Installation =x x $12,219.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$120.82 86.00

Demolition x x = $1,728.41 1.1760$17.09 86.00

User Note: Remove old lighting and install new. Per a conversation with the Owner all lights are to be new.

26  52   00   00 0007 54 Max Wattage At 90 Minutes, 6 Volt, Remote Capability, Polycarbonate 

Housing, Krypton Lamps, Commercial Emergency Light (Lithonia ELM654)

186 $2,231.64EA

Installation =x x $2,231.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$210.85 9.00

User Note: Per reflected ceiling plan

26  53   00   00 0005 Double Face, Thermoplastic Housing, LED Exit Sign With Battery Back-Up187 $282.52EA

Installation =x x $282.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1760$120.12 2.00

User Note: Per reflected ceiling plan

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $43,421.65

$336,254.73Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 22 of 22

3/8/2017

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



www.eziqc.com

Summary Of Costs 

Statewide General Contracting JOC

 

Globe Court House remodelJOC Project Name:

17-GilaCounty-0002.00JOC Project Number:

Amount of Proposal: $336,254.73 Purchase Order Amount to Contractor

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Contractor:

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

1901 E University Drive                                                                                                                               

Suite 330                                                                                                                                             

Mesa, AZ 85203

(480) 832-1777

3/8/2017

















 

 

 

 

 

Contract Change Order Summary 
Contract Amendment 

 

 

State of Arizona  

State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15TH Avenue, Suite 201 
 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
Contract No.: ADSPO14-0813788 

 

Change Order No.:  18 Date: January 30, 2017 

 

1 

 

Statewide Job Order Contracting 
 

 
1. In accordance with Special Terms and Conditions Paragraph 5.1, Contract Amendments, the aforementioned 

contract is hereby extended from January 31, 2017 to March 17, 2017. This contract extension is in the best 
interest of the state in accordance with Competition Impracticable Determination to minimize disruption of 
construction services to agencies for Job Order Contracting Delivery Method while the state finalizes award for new 
unit pricing book and contractors. Contractor adjustment factor shall remain unchanged. 

 
 

ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS, SPECIFICATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED. 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION 

 

This Change Order shall not be binding on the State until it is acknowledged and accepted electronically in ProcureAZ by an authorized 

representative of the Contractor and accepted by and authorized representative of the State. 
 

 

 
 

 
 



   

ARF-4221   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Michael O'Driscoll, Director
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2016 - 2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 - June 30 2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-133182)
with the Arizona Department of Health Services for Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Funding. This amendment gives Gila County Department of Health Services and additional
$14,029.43 for Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities and $10,000.00 for Zika Virus
public education materials.

Background Information
The purpose of the Gila County Public Health Emergency Preparedness program is to readily
prepare the staff and community for any public health emergency.  This includes staff training,
development of disaster plans, organizing disaster exercises, and procuring emergency supplies
and equipment.  The program exists to enhance all hazard strategic planning and direction,
coordination and assessment, surveillance and detection capacities, risk communication and
health information dissemination, telecommunications capabilities and education and training.

This Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-133182) began a new contract period
for the public health emergency preparedness grant extending our funding from July 1, 2016, to
June 30, 2017, in the amount of $186,389.67 and was approved by the Board of Supervisors at
its June 21, 2016, meeting. Amendment No.1 to Contract No. ADHS17-133182 provided an
additional $55,870 in funding to be used for Zika Virus community outreach, public education,
and mosquito surveillance programs. Amendment No.2 to Contract No. ADHS17-133182 provides
an additional $14,029.43 for Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities and $10,000 for
Zika Virus public educational materials.

Evaluation
This funding will allow the Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division,
Department of Public Health Emergency Preparedness, to continue to provide staff and
community preparedness training;  develop disaster plans; organize disaster exercises; and
procure emergency supplies and equipment as well as the continued review and improvement
of all hazard strategic planning and direction, coordination and assessment, surveillance and
detection capacities, risk communication and health information dissemination,
telecommunications capabilities and education and training. In addition, this funding will allow
further community outreach and the creation of public educational materials for Zika Virus.

Conclusion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Intergovernmental Agreement-Contract No. ADHS17-133182 will



Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Intergovernmental Agreement-Contract No. ADHS17-133182 will
allow the Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division to continue to improve
emergency preparedness services and support to Gila County residents and additionally better
prepare the county to respond and mitigate new and emerging infectious diseases.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health & Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 2 to the Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS17-133182) with the Arizona Department of Health Services for the amount of $24,029.43
to support the continuance of the public health emergency preparedness grant services from July
1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-133182)
between the Arizona Department of Health Services and the Gila County Health and Emergency
Management Division for $24,029.43 in order to provide continued public health emergency
preparedness services.

Attachments
ADHS17-133182 Amendment 2
ADHS17-133182 Amendment No. 1
ADHS17-133182 Original Contract



 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT(IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

150 North 18
th
 Avenue,  Suite 280 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 

(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Agreement No: ADHS17-133182 Amendment No.: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Russell Coplen 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Emergency Preparedness Program 

 
Effective upon signature, it is mutually agreed that the Agreement referenced above is amended as follows: 
 

1. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions, Provision 6. Contract Changes, Section 6.1 Amendments, Purchase Orders and 
Change Orders, the Price Sheet is revised to include the Price Sheet of this Amendment Two (2). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All other provisions shall remain in their entirety. 

 
 
Gila County  

 CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE 
 

 

Contractor Name 
 
 5515 S. Apache Ave. Suite 400 

Contractor Authorized Signature 

Address 
 
Globe                    AZ                             85501 

Printed Name 

    City                          State                             Zip Title 

CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public 
agency attorney has determined that this 
Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper form and is 
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of 
the State of Arizona.  
 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be 
effective the date indicated. The Public Agency is hereby 
cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide 
any material, service or construction under this IGA until 
the IGA has been executed by an authorized ADHS 
signatory. 

State of Arizona 

 

Signed this _________ day of _________________ 2017 

 

Signature                                                          Date 
 

 

Printed Name Procurement Officer 

Attorney General Contract No. P0012014000078, which 
is an Agreement between public agencies, has been 
reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned 
Assistant Attorney General, who has determined that it is 
in proper form and is within the powers and authority 
granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.   
 
 

  

Signature                                                                             
Date 
Assistant Attorney General 
 
Printed Name:  



 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT(IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

150 North 18
th
 Avenue,  Suite 280 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 

(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Agreement No: ADHS17-133182 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Russell Coplen 

 

Page 2 of 3 

2. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions, Provision 6. Contract Changes, Section 6.1 Amendments, Purchase Orders 
and Change Orders, The following terms are added to the Special Terms and Conditions of this Amendment Two 
(2). 

  
21.  Contracting; Procurement; Investment; Prohibitions 
   

21.1    A public entity may not enter into a contract with a company to acquire or dispose of services, supplies, 

information technology or construction unless the contract includes a written certification that the 

company is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the contract to not engage in, a 

boycott of Israel. 

  

21.2   A public entity may not adopt a procurement, investment or other policy that has the effect of inducing 

or requiring a person or company to boycott Israel. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT(IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

150 North 18
th
 Avenue,  Suite 280 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 

(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Agreement No: ADHS17-133182 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Russell Coplen 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 

PRICE SHEET 
 

PHEP Refresh Seven (7) Percent Funding Reinstated  
July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 

Cost Reimbursement 

Description Quantity Unit Rate Total Cost 

Additional funds to enhance current PHEP activities. 1 $14,029.43 $14,029.43 

 
PHEP Zika Phase II Funding 

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 
Fixed Price 

Description Quantity Unit Rate Total Cost 

Attachment A 
Deliverables and Activities per the Scope of Work 

1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 

 
 

TOTAL $24,029.43 

 
 

 























































   

ARF-4232   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board Appointment

Background Information
The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Local Board
consists of 5 members - 1 member is appointed by the Board of
Supervisors (BOS) and is represented as the BOS Chairman; 2 citizens are
appointed by the BOS; and 2 members are elected by secret ballot by
those local members enrolled in the retirement plan. 

At present there are two citizen vacancies.  One term of office began on
January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2019, and the other term of office
began on January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2020. 

There is also another vacancy for the term of office which began on
January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2020. An election by secret ballot
of those local members enrolled in the retirement plan must be held to fill
this vacancy.

Evaluation
The Human Resources Department provided notification to the Clerk of
the Board that Robert Solberg, a citizen, is willing to serve on this
governing board for the term of office that will end on December 31, 2020.
The BOS needs to appoint Mr. Solberg to the Local Board. 

On December 13, 2016, an election was held by members of the PSPRS
and who are employed by Gila County.  On February 7, 2017, the election
results were presented to the PSPRS Local Board and they were certified
as being official.  Johnny Holmes was re-elected to the Local Board for the
4-year term of office beginning January 1, 2017, through December 31,
2020.  His term of office began on February 7, 2017.  A copy of the
meeting agenda and draft minutes are attached to this agenda item.  Mr.
Holmes' previous term of office expired on December 31, 2016; therefore,
he is being elected to fill a vacancy that occurred prior to his being
re-elected for the 4-year term of office that began on January 1, 2017.



Conclusion
Per statutory requirement and if approved by the members of the BOS, the
BOS needs to appoint Mr. Solberg to the PSPRS Local Board.  In order to
have an accurate record of this Local Board on file, the Board should also
"acknowledge" the election of Johnny Holmes to the Local Board.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors appoint Robert Solberg
to the PSPRS Local Board of Directors for the term of office that expires on
December 31, 2020, and acknowledge the election of Johnny Holmes for
the term of office that expires on December 31, 2020.

Suggested Motion
Approval to appoint Robert Solberg to the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) Local Board of Directors for the term
beginning on March 21, 2017, through December 31, 2020; and
acknowledgment of the election of Johnny Holmes to said Local Board for
the term beginning on February 7, 2017, through December 31, 2020.

Attachments
PSPRS Local Board Member List
2-7-17 PSPRS Local Board Meeting Agenda
2-7-17 PSPRS Local Board Draft Minutes



 

PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSPRS) LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

(Proposed to the BOS on 3/21/17) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Woody Cline (appointed by 
BOS) 

B A (02/07/17) - 01/01/17-12/31/20 
BOS reviews 
appointment on a yearly 
basis. 

01/01/17-12/31/20 
Coincides with 
Supervisor’s term. 

VACANCY-CITIZEN (Personnel 
Commission Chairman & 
appointed by BOS) 

B J. Barber’s term on the 
Personnel Commission 
expired 12/31/16, and 
he did not want to be 
reappointed. 

H.R. is looking for a 
candidate to fill this 
position. 

?-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Robert Solberg-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS) 

B A (03/21/17) - 03/21/17-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

Travis Baxley-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 

C A (06/21/16) - 04/18/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Johnny Holmes-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members ) 

C A (03/21/17)  3 years, 3 months 02/07/17-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  March 1, 1985 
B. Established per A.R.S. 38-847 
C. PSPRS Local Board is comprised of 5 members:  1 member appointed by BOS and represented as the BOS Chairman; 2 citizens appointed by the BOS of which 1 citizen who shall be the 

Chairman of the Gila County Personnel Commission; and 2 members elected by secret ballot by members of the PSPRS and who are employed by Gila County and who are 
“acknowledged:” by the BOS.  Board members are appointed for a term of 4 years. 

D. Dates of Terms of Office – BOS appoints BOS member and 2 CITIZENS; and Local Board elects by secret ballot 2 MEMBERS, so their start term date begins when the Local Board certifies 
the election results. 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



 

 

 

 
 

Gila County Sheriff’s Deputy Local Board of the 

PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSPRS)  

REVISED MEETING AGENDA 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.02, Public Notice is hereby given to the members of the Gila County Public Safety Personnel 

Retirement System Local Board and to the general public that the Gila County Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 

(PSPRS) Local Board will hold a meeting open to the public on: 

 

Tuesday, February 7, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Gila County Copper Admin Building 

Gila County Human Resources Conference Room 

1400 E. Ash Street 

Globe, AZ  85501 
 

Agenda is as follows: 

Call to order and Roll Call 

Possible Executive Session: Notice is hereby given that at any time during this meeting the PSPRS Local Board 

may make a motion to recess into Executive Session to discuss and consult with the attorney of the public body 

for legal advice and to discuss confidential records pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(2) and/or A.R.S. §38-

431.03(A)(3). 

 

1. Swearing in of new Local Board Chairman Woody Cline. 

 

2. Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the results of the election held on December 13, 2016 to elect a 

member to serve on the PSPRS Local Board, and to declare the election results official 

 

3. Swearing in of new Local Board Member Johnny Holmes.  

 

4. Information/Discussion/Action to review and approve Minutes of meeting held on November 3, 2016. 

 

5. Information/Discussion/Action to make a reemployment determination: Gilbert Olivarez. 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the PSPRS Local Board may 

present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on issues presented. 

 

7. Adjournment 

 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, the PSPRS Local Board endeavors to ensure the accessibility of its meetings 

to all persons with disabilities.  Should an individual require an accommodation for the meeting, please contact the Human 

Resources Department at (928) 402-8723.  Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the 

accommodations. 

 

This notice posted on the Bulletin Board at the Gila County Courthouse on Monday February 6, 2017.  

 



The
 
Me
Mc
 
Also
 
Age
 
Item
 
Wo
 
Item
me
 
Mo
the
mo
 
Item
 
Joh
 
Item
 
Mo

Mo

 

Item

Mo

Me

 

Item
Off
 
Cle
 
 
Item
Hol
 

e meeting wa

embers  prese
Pherson, Loc

o present:  An

enda items: 

m 1‐ Swearin

oody Cline wa

m 2 – Inform
ember to serv

otion to decla
e winner was 
otion carried. 

m 3 ‐ Swearin

hnny Holmes w

m 4 ‐ Informa

otion to appro

otion seconde

m 5 ‐ Informa

otion to appro

ember Johnny

m  6–  At  any 
fice Public Saf

rical Support

m 7– There b
lmes. Motion

Public 

s called to or

ent  were  Wo
al Board Secr

ngelo Cutter,

ng in of new L

as sworn in by

ation/Discus
ve on the PSP

re the results
made by Me

ng in of new L

was sworn in

ation/Discuss

ove the minut

ed by Travis B

ation/Discuss

ove the reem

y Holmes.  Mo

time  during
fety Personne

, Angelo Cutt

being no furth
n was seconde

Gila Coun

Safety P

Tue

rder at 1:00 p

oody  Cline,  C
retary. 

 Clerical Supp

Local Board C

y Clerical Sup

sion/Action t
PRS Local Boa

s of the PSPR
ember Travis 

Local Board M

 by Clerical Su

sion/Action t

tes from the m

axley.  By una

sion/Action t

ployment of G

otion seconde

  this meeting
el Retirement

er presented

her business b
ed by Membe

nty Sheriff’

Personnel
Meet

esday, Febr

.m. by Local B

Chairman;  Tra

port. 

Chairman Wo

port, Angelo 

to canvass th
ard and to dec

S Local Board
Baxley.  Mot

Member John

upport, Ange

o review and

meeting on N

animous vote

o make a ree

Gilbert Olivar

ed by Travis B

g  pursuant  t
t System Loca

 items that w

before the Bo
er Travis Baxle

 
 
 

s Deputy Lo

l Retirem
ting Minute
ruary 7, 201

 
Board Secreta

avis  Baxley, 

ody Cline.  

Cutter. 

he results of t
clare the elec

d election hel
tion seconded

nny Holmes. 

lo Cutter. 

d approve Mi

November 3, 2

e, motion carr

employment 

rez with an ef

Baxley.  By un

o  A.R.S.  §38‐
al Board may 

will need to be

oard, motion t
ey.  By unanim

ocal Board 

ment Syst
es 
17, 1:00 pm

ary, Shelley M

Member;  Jo

the election h
ction results 

ld on Decemb
d by Chairma

nutes of mee

2016 was ma

ried. 

determinatio

ffective date 

nanimous vot

‐431.02(K),  m
present a bri

e addressed b

to adjourn m
mous vote, m

of the  
tem (PSP

McPherson. 

hnny  Holmes

held on Dece
official.   

ber 13, 2016 
an Woody Cli

eting held on

de by Memb

on: Gilbert Ol

of August 29,

e, motion car

members  of  t
ef summary o

by Local Board

meeting was m
motion carried

PRS) 

s,  Member;

ember 13, 201

declaring Joh
ine.  By unan

 November 3

er Johnny Ho

livarez. 

, 2016  was m

rried. 

the  Gila  Cou
of current eve

d in the near 

made by Mem
d. 

and  Shelley 

16 to elect a 

hnny Holmes 
nimous vote, 

3, 2016. 

olmes.  

made by 

nty  Sheriff’s 
ents 

future. 

mber, Johnny 



 
Meeting was adjourned at 1:13 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Woody Cline, PSPRS Local Board Chairman 



   

ARF-4133   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Pleasant Valley Fire District Governing Board Appointment

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §48-803 (C) states, "If a vacancy in the district
board occurs due to death or disability or any other cause other than
resignation, the board of directors of the district shall appoint a
qualified elector of the district to fill the office for the remaining portion
of that term. If there is a vacancy in the district board due to
resignation, the district board shall accept the resignation and appoint
a qualified elector to fill the remaining portion of that term of office. If
the district board lacks a quorum for any reason for more than thirty
days, the county board of supervisors may revoke the authority of the
appointed or elected board of directors pursuant to section 48-1016."

Evaluation
Pleasant Valley Fire District governing board member Karol Clark
tendered her resignation notice effective August 16, 2016.  On December
14, 2016, the Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of Directors appointed
Peter Elenius to fulfill Mrs. Clark's unexpired term of office, which ends on
December 31, 2016.  Peter Elenius was reappointed on January 18, 2017,
for a four-year term beginning January 18, 2017, through December 31,
2020.

Conclusion
On December 14, 2016, the Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of
Directors unanimously voted to appoint Peter Elenius to fulfill Karol
Clark's unexpired term of office, which ends on December 31, 2016.  On
January 18, 2017, Peter Elenius was reappointed for the term ending in
December 31, 2020.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Department Director recommends that the



The Gila County Elections Department Director recommends that the
Board of Supervisors acknowledge Karol Clark's resignation from the
Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of Directors and the appointment of
Peter Elenius to fulfill Mrs. Clark's term of office beginning December 14,
2016, and ending December 31, 2016, and to acknowledge the
reappointment of Peter Elenius' term beginning January 18, 2016, and
ending December 31, 2020.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Karol Clark's resignation from the Pleasant Valley Fire
District Board of Directors and the appointment of Peter Elenius to fulfill
Mrs. Clark's unexpired term, effective December 14, 2016, through
December 31, 2016, and to acknowledge the reappointment of
Peter Elenius' term beginning January 18, 2016, and ending December
31, 2020.

Attachments
Arizona Revised Statute 48-1012
Loyaly Oath of Office Peter Elenius
Meeting Minutes 12-14-2016
Meeting Agenda 12-14-2016
Karol Clark Resignation Letter
Meeting Agenda 1-18-2017
Meeting Minutes 1-18-2017























   

ARF-4217   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

Financial and statistical reports for January 2017

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for January
2017.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgement of the January 2017 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
January 2017 report













   

ARF-4233   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for February 2017

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for February
2017.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2017 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for February 2017









   

ARF-4231   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
February 2017

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for February 2017.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2017 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
February 2017























   

ARF-4236   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
February 2017

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Rose Holiday, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for February 2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2017 monthly departmental activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
February Monthly Report



















   

ARF-4237   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

February 2017

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for February 2017.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2017 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's Report February 2017



















   

ARF-4241   Consent Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

February 2017

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for February 2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2017 monthly activity report submitted
by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's February 2017 Monthly Report





















   

ARF-4238   Consent Agenda Item     4. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

March 7, 2017

Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
March 7, 2017, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the March 7, 2017, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
03-07-17 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 10 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  March 7, 2017 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE                                                  Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin; Chairman (via ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Vice-
Chairman (via ITV); Woody Cline, Member (via ITV); John Nelson, County 

Manager (via ITV); Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil 
Bureau Chief; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Melissa 
Henderson, Deputy Clerk. 

 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Martin called the regular session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 
the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  John Nelson led the Pledge of 

Allegiance and Pastor Rich Ritchey of the First Church of the Nazarene in 
Payson delivered the Invocation.  
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATION: 
 
A.  Public recognition of four employees for March's "Spotlight on 

Employees" Program, as follows: Megan Miller, David Hornung, Brian Dirks 
and Dennis Newman.   

 
Erica Garcia, Human Resources Assistant Senior, read aloud letters of 
nomination for the above listed employees.  Ms. Miller has been employed with 

Gila County for 8 years as a Superior Court Clerk, and she was nominated by a 
member of the public.  Sheriff Shepherd wrote 3 separate nomination letters for 

Sergeant Hornung, who has been employed at Gila County for 13 years; 
Deputy Dirks, who has been employed at Gila County for 3 years; and Sergeant 
Newman, who has been employed at Gila County for 14 years.  All officers were 

recognized for their role in search and rescue efforts for a plane crash that 
occurred in northern Gila County on January 2, 2017.  Deputy Dirks 
mentioned that Tonto Rim Search and Rescue also played a key role in locating 

the crash site and recovering the bodies, etc.  Chairman Martin suggested 
presenting a certificate of appreciation to that group to which Deputy Dirks 



Page 2 of 10 

 

agreed.  Each Board member thanked Ms. Miller, Sergeant Hornung, Deputy 
Dirks and Sergeant Newman. 

 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2017-01 
amending the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County for the 

rezoning of parcel numbers 205-07-020M, 205-07-020N and 205-07-020P 
from Commercial Three (C3) to Residence One with a D8 Density District 
(R1-D8) for the purpose of allowing a single family home on each parcel 

with certain conditions as outlined in the Ordinance.   
 

Robert (Bob) Gould, a temporary Planner for Gila County, presented this 
agenda item.  He advised that these 3 parcels of land are approximately one-
half acre in size.  They are being sold for the purpose of allowing a single family 

home on each parcel.  He advised that residential development is not allowed 
within commercial zoning under Gila County regulations; therefore, an 

application has been submitted to rezone the subject parcels to residential 
zoning.  Mr. Gould further advised that 20-25 years ago, the Board of 
Supervisors changed the zoning on a strip of land (approximately 400 feet wide) 

which runs along the front portion of Highway 188 from residential to 
commercial zoning.  The change in zoning at that time was most likely due to 
expected commercial development; however, at present, most of the properties 

in the subject area are used for residential purposes.  Mr. Gould recommended 
that the Board adopt Ordinance No. 2017-01 to rezone the subject properties 

for residential use.  Chairman Martin asked the Board members if they had 
any questions and Vice-Chairman Humphrey commented that he didn’t have 
any questions other than to recognize that there is non-compatibility of parcels 

in this area due to mixed uses to which Mr. Gould affirmed.  Chairman Martin 
opened the public hearing.  There weren’t any comments, so she closed the 
public hearing and asked for a motion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted 
Ordinance No. 2017-01.  (A copy of the Ordinance is permanently on file in 

the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Item 3 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 

Invitation for Bids No. 021317-1-Timber Region Chip Seal Project. 
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that the County’s half-

cent transportation excise tax will be used to complete the project listed under 
this agenda item and the following agenda item.  He stated that it was decided 
to advertise two separate invitation for bids for the Timber Region Chip Seal 

Project and the Copper Region Chip Seal Project (in the following agenda item) 
due to the cost of materials in each area.  If approved, the County will advertise 



Page 3 of 10 

 

to select a contractor to chip seal approximately 18 miles of road in the Timber 
Region, which is in northern Gila County.  This project was identified in the 

County’s transportation study.  Upon motion Vice-Chairman Humphrey, 
seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously authorized the 

advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 021317-1. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 

Invitation for Bids No. 021517-Copper Region Chip Seal Project. 
 
Mr. Sanders advised that this project was also identified in the County’s 

transportation study to chip seal approximately 2 miles of road in the Copper 
Region, which is in southern Gila County.  This project will also be funded with 

the County’s half–cent transportation excise tax.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously 
authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 021517. 

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 

Invitation for Bids No. 021617-Deer Creek Cul-de-Sac Improvements.  
 
Mr. Sanders stated that this cul-de-sac is in dire need of repairs.  Removing the 

old pavement and replacing it with new pavement and base material is being 
proposed for the cul-de-sac to provide a repair which will last for several years.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 

Board unanimously approved the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 
021617. 

 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the amendment of Policy 
No. BOS-HRS-006, Section II, Policy, County Manager, #4, and Policy No. 

BOS-FIN-002, Section II, Policy, Contract Approval, #1, #3, #5, and #6 to 
authorize the Assistant County Manager to sign Payroll Authorization 
Forms and contracts of $50,000 or less per year to prevent an undue 

delay in the day-to-day business of the County. 
 

John Nelson, County Manager, advised that when the previous County 
Manager retired from the County, there was confusion whether or not he 
delegated authority to someone else to sign payroll authorization forms and 

contracts totaling $50,000 or less.  As a result, policy numbers BOS-HRS-006 
and BOS-FIN-002 were revised to allow the Assistant County Manager the 

authority to sign those related documents in addition to the County Manager.  
Jeff Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, reviewed the revised 
policies and informed management that only the Board of Supervisors has the 

authority to change these County policies, which are being presented today for 
approval.  Mr. Nelson asked for the Board’s approval.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board 

unanimously approved revised policy numbers BOS-HRS-006 and BOS-FIN-
002 as presented. 



Page 4 of 10 

 

 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 

purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-21-045B.  
 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that the subject property is 
located at 196 S. Glass Canyon in Miami.  The property contains a house that 
is deteriorated and it has been vandalized.  She advised that a sealed bid has 

been presented which contains a bid that is less than the lien amount of 
$4,478.  Ms. Sheppard added that the Board adopted a resolution several years 
ago which states that the Board may waive the requirement to sell the property 

for no less than the total lien amount if a condition warrants selling a parcel at 
a lesser price. Chairman Martin asked Ms. Sheppard to open the sealed bid at 

this time.  Ms. Sheppard announced that Kim Marie Ogrin submitted a bid in 
the amount of $3,205.60, and she proceeded to read a letter from Ms. Ogrin.  
Ms. Ogrin’s letter states that she is a single mother with two sons and if the 

Board accepts her offer, she promises to clean up the property and fix the 
house for habitation by her and her sons.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 

Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously accepted a 
bid in the amount of $3,205.60 from Ms. Ogrin for the purchase of Assessor’s 
tax parcel number 206-21-045B. 

 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action regarding a proposed two-year 
Employment Contract between Gila County and John F. Nelson for the 

period March 1, 2017, through February 28, 2019.  
 

Chairman Martin stated that this contract is necessary, not only for County 
Manager John Nelson, but also to attract a new County Manager at such time 
as Mr. Nelson departs the County and to establish a process for hiring a 

County Manager.  She mentioned that all Arizona counties have executed a 
contract with the County Manager except for La Paz, Apache, Greenlee, 
Graham and Gila counties.  She advised that other county contracts were 

reviewed in order to ensure that the proposed contract contains the 
appropriate language.  Mr. Nelson added that the contract provides language 

that addresses termination for cause and without cause, and it includes a six-
month severance package for a termination without cause.  He pointed out that 
the proposed contract does not address a requirement for the County Manager 

to reside in Gila County; however, any new contract with a County Manager 
will contain that language.  Mr. Nelson does live in Gila County.  

 
Supervisor Cline commented that he was not comfortable entering into a 
contract with the County Manager as it would set a precedent and it is his 

understanding that previous Gila County Managers did not have a contract.  
He spoke with Mr. Nelson earlier this morning and has since learned that a 
contract is a beneficial tool in attracting candidates because it provides some 

security.  He reiterated that he is not in favor of entering into a contract with 
the County Manager; however, he added that he is pleased with Mr. Nelson’s 



Page 5 of 10 

 

performance.  His focus is more about hiring a future County Manager.  
Supervisor Cline stated that he wants to do what is best for Gila County.  He 

agreed to consider the proposed contract, but added that he would prefer to 
have more time to review and discuss it prior to the Board taking a vote.   

 
Vice-Chairman Humphrey advised that he is a general contractor; therefore, he 
believes that contracts are necessary in doing business as it puts “everyone on 

the same page.”  He added that if the contract needs to be changed in the 
future, it may be amended at any time.  He also supports the inclusion of a 
clause in the contract that will require any future County Manager to reside in 

Gila County.   
 

Chairman Martin supports entering into a contract with Mr. Nelson, so if it is 
discovered that revisions need to be made to the contract, they can be made 
before the next County Manager is hired.  She expressed her belief that if the 

County had offered a contract at the time the County was previously going 
through the process to hire a County Manager, it would have received far more 

qualified applicants.  She does want to establish a precedent that all County 
Managers must enter into a contract with the County. 
 

Supervisor Cline added that possibly a contract should be implemented for 
other County positions.  Supervisor Cline stated that even though he had a 
good conversation earlier this morning with Mr. Nelson, he does have some 

more questions as the County moves forward.   
 

Chairman Martin advised that the County Manager’s salary also needs further 
review before a new County Manager is hired.   
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved a two-year Employment Contract between Gila 
County and John F. Nelson for the period March 1, 2017, through February 

28, 2019.  
 

Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 

Board of Supervisors.)  
 

A.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 07012016-17 between 
the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County 
Community Services Division to increase Utility Repair Replacement 

Deposit (URRD) funds by the amount of $35,000 for a new total allocation 
of $87,092.  

 

B.  Approval to accept two grant awards from the Constables Ethics, 
Standards, and Training Board, and authorization of the Chairman's 



Page 6 of 10 

 

signature on Grant Award Contract No. CNA17-501 in the amount of 
$930.69 and Grant Award Contract No. CNA17-502 in the amount of 

$1,433.89 for the County Constables' Offices' purchase of a ballistic vest 
and uniforms, respectively.  

 
C.  Approval to appoint Lori Brown to the Gila County Planning and 
Zoning Commission beginning March 7, 2017, through December 31, 

2020.  
 

D.  Acknowledgment of the reappointment of Diane Hallett to the Beaver 

Valley Domestic Water Improvement District governing board effective 
January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2020.  

 
E.  Acknowledgment of the January 2017 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

 
F.  Approval of the February 21, 2017, and February 28, 2017, Board of 

Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 

February 7, 2017, February 14, 2017, February 21, 2017, and February 
28, 2017.  

 

FEBRUARY 7, 2017 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Karla Fandrich – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 

02/24/17 – CAP(.50)/GEST(.50)Funds – DOH 06/20/16 
2. Lynn Key – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 02/02/17 – 
Facilities Management Fund – DOH 09/12/16 

3. John Root – Public Works – Fleet and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – 
04/14/17 – Fleet Management Fund – DOH 03/16/77 

NEW HIRES: 
4. Kevin Steveson – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker – 
02/13/17 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – Replacing Edward 

Avalos 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
5. Karen Brake – Sheriff’s Office – From Administrative Clerk – To Accounting 

Clerk Specialist – 01/30/17 – General Fund – Replacing Lieneke Mellema 
6. Charlotte Williams – Recorder’s Office – From Office Supervisor – To Chief 

Deputy Recorder – 01/31/17 – General Fund – Replacing Kaycee Reece 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
7. John Nelson – Board of Supervisors – County Manager – 01/22/17 – 

General Fund – Revision 
8. Shelley McPherson – Human Resources – Director of Human Resources – 

01/22/17 – General Fund - Revision 



Page 7 of 10 

 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 

9. Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Karla 
Fandrich 

10. Recorder’s Office – Office Supervisor – Vacated by Charlotte Williams 
11. Superior Court – Court Case Management Systems Trainer – Vacated by 
Patricia England 

FEBRUARY 14, 2017 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Rhonda Wood – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Senior – 02/07/17 – 
Facilities Management Fund – DOH 12/19/06 

2. Erin Baker – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 02/17/17 – Juvenile 
Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – DOH 07/15/16 
NEW HIRES: 

3. Gabriel Arrellin – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 
02/21/17 – Rabies Control Fund – Replacing Michael Halbert 
4. Nick Sedlachek – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/21/17 – General 

Fund – Replacing Brian Buchanan 
5. Michael Huckeby – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment 

Operator – 02/21/17 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Wesley Wilson 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
6. Marlowe Cassadore – Elections – Voter Outreach Coordinator – 02/22/17 – 

General Fund 
7. George Allen – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Services Specialist – 

02/22/17 – General Fund 
8. Ashlie Enfield-Goss – Sheriff’s Office – Property and Evidence Custodian – 
02/15/17 – General Fund 

9. Kimberly Rust – Payson Constable’s Office – Constable Clerk – 02/01/17 – 
General Fund 

FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Porter Wilbanks – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator Senior – 02/21/17 – Public Works Fund – DOH 11/17/08 
NEW HIRES: 

2. Thomas Zienka – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator – 03/13/17 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Travis Wills 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

3. Mark Warden – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 02/28/17 – 
Facilities Management Fund 

4. Betty Hurst – Finance – Contracts Administrator – 02/28/17 – General Fund 
5. Rose Holiday – Globe Constable’s Office – Constable Clerk – 02/08/17 – 
General Fund 



Page 8 of 10 

 

6. Patti Dremler – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 03/21/17 – 
CASA(.50)/Court Improvement Project(.50) Funds 

OTHER ACTIONS 
7. Scott Buzan – Community Development – Community Development Site 

Supervisor – 02/06/17 – General Fund – Temporary Assignment 
REQUEST TO POST: 
8. Information Technology – Systems Specialist – Vacated by Sarah Bennett 

9. Assessor’s Office – Mapping Technician – Vacated by Melissa Henderson 
10. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 
Vacated by Brian Jennings and John Griffin 

11. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 
Vacated by Porter Wilbanks 

12. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – Vacated by 
Joel McDaniel and Justin Newby 
13. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – Vacated by 

John Digman 

FEBRUARY 28, 2017 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
1. Nancy Simmons – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Executive 

Administrative Assistant – 03/06/17 – General Fund – Replacing Carl Melford 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
2. Brittany Francis – Health and Emergency Services – Staff Nutritionist – 

03/19/17 – WIC(.99)/Commodity Supplement Food Program(.01) Funds 
3. Kristopher Tower – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer 

– 02/22/17 – Rabies Control Fund 
4. Zachary Paul – Public Works – GIS Analyst – 03/12/17 – General Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

5. Stephanie Szpotowski – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher Supervisor – 03-23-
17 – General Fund – Extending probationary period an additional six months 
 

H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for January 23-29, 
2017; January 30-February 5, 2017; February 6-12, 2017; February 13-19, 

2017, and February 20-26, 2017.  
 

Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 281683 through 281686, 281688 through 281752, 281754 through 

281775, 271777 through 281805, and 281807 totaling $1,072,032.48 for the 

period 1-23-17 through 1-29-17; warrant numbers 281809 through 281891 

and 281893 through 281913 totaling $256,633.53 for the period 1-30-17 

through 2-05-17; warrant numbers 281919 through 281957, 281959 through 

282050, and 282052 totaling $960,373.60 for the period 2-06-17 through 2-

12-17; and warrant numbers 282053 through 282153 totaling $1,047,375.79 



Page 9 of 10 

 

for the period 2-13-17 through 02-19-17; warrant numbers 282154 through 

282247 and 282249 through 282280 totaling $1,171,382.43 for the period 2-

20-17 through 2-26-17.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants are permanently attached 

to these minutes.) 

 
I.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the weeks of January 23, 2017, 
through January 27, 2017; and January 30, 2017, through February 3, 
2017.  

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 

Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action items 4A through 4I. 
 
Item 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 

There weren’t any comments from the public. 
 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 
Each Supervisor presented a summary of current events.  Mr. Nelson advised 

that he did not have anything to report at this time. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 
 



Page 10 of 10 

 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   

ARF-4227   Consent Agenda Item     4. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/21/2017  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 02-17-17 and 02-24-17.

Submitted For: James Menlove, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 02-17-17 and 02-24-17.
 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the week of February 13, 2017, through
February 17, 2017; and February 20, 2017, through February 24, 2017.

Attachments
Report for County Manager approved contracts under $50,000 for
weeks ending 02-17-17, and 02-24-17
Contract No. 13412-S with Norment Security Group
State Contract No. ADSPO13-043962 with SD Crane
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 013015-2
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 112916
Service Agreement No. 020317 with Kino Floors & Interiors, LLC
Service Agreement No. 020417 with AAA Lock Service
Service Agreement No. 021317 with Steven Enterprises, Inc.
Amendment No 1 to Service Agreement No. 120816
Service Agreement No. 021017-1 with C&M Communications
Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 120514
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 110614-1
Service Agreement No. 022117 with Gila County Rodeo Committee
Agreement with Center for Disease Detection, LLC
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 121014-1
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 011116





 

 
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
February 13, 2017 thru February 17, 2017 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

13412-S 
Norment Security 

Group 

 

 
CCTV Upgrades with IP 
Cameras for Payson Jail 

 
$ 31,435.11 

 
06-30-17 

 
02-15-17 

 
Expires 

 
Upgrade video recording equipment to 
provide the following benefits: 1) Allow 
for current expansion of 5 additional 
cameras to provide better coverage for 
improved inmate and officer safety. 2) 
Provide capacity for future video 
surveillance expansion needs at this 
facility. 3) Provide RAIDS (data 
redundancy) capabilities to our recording 
system so a single disk failure will not 
cause a loss of continuous data recording 
availability. 

 
ADSPO13-043962 

SD Crane 

 

 
Door Reconstruction for 

Two Buildings 

 
$14,133.35 

 

 
04-30-17 

 
02-15-17 

 
Expires 

 
Copper Building Probation needs a door 
moved for security reasons with their 
clients that was not considered during 
design. Public Works Admin Building doors 
will be removed and opening will be filled in 
to make a center opening for just one metal 
door. 

 
013015-1 

DJ’s Companies, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 
extend contract term. 

 
$2,392.00 

 

 
02-10-17 to 02-09-18 

 
02-15-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to extend 
the term of the contract from February 
10, 2017 to February 9, 2018. Landscape 
crews, made up of primarily prison 
trustees, have a portable toilet on a trailer 
to use. The trailer will be parked at the 
Fairgrounds after 2 PM on week days, 
ready for service by DJ’s Companies. This 
contract is for service only, not rental. 

 

  



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

February 13, 2017 thru February 17, 2017 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

112916 
BKB Services 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 will 
extend contract term 

 
N/A 

 
02-28-17 

 
02-15-17 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend the 
contract date through February 28, 2017, 
due to needed time for completion. Rain 
gutters are original to building 
installation in 1998. Beginning to fall off 
of building and leaking. 

 
020317 

Kino Floors & Exteriors, 
LLC 

 
Window Tint for Finance 

Windows 

 
$416.43 

 

 
02-28-17 to 06-30-17 

 
02-15-17 

 
Expires 

 
Since the Copper Building was occupied 
the sun coming up has been blinding and 
will be hot in the summer through the 
doors. Solution was window tint instead 
of blinds that would have to be cleaned 
and would most likely get tangled with 
the door traffic. 

 
020417 

AAA Lock Services 

 
Replacing lock on Gun 

Lockers 

 
$578.76 

 
02-08-17 to 02-28-17 

 
02-15-17 

 
Expires 

 
Need Vendor with the capabilities and 
tools required to open cabinets and 
lockers that no longer have keys or are 
otherwise not operational. Provide 
replacement locks for gun lockers and 
install. 
 

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

February 20, 2017 thru February 24, 2017 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

021317 
Steven Enterprises, Inc. 

 

 
Office Machine Repair 

 
$1,500.00 

 
02-23-17 to 02-22-18 

 
02-23-17 

 
Option to renew 

 
Public Works has a HP T2300 Design jet 
Color Plotter that is not working. We need 
a contract for someone to come and 
diagnose the problem and repair it. This 
machine is needed to do the daily tasks in 
Floodplain it is a critical piece of 
machinery.  
 

 
120816 

DJ’s Companies, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 Will 
Extend contract term. 

 
N/A 

 
02-28-17 

 
02-23-17 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the term of the contract through February 
28, 2017 due to unforeseen delays. Labor 
and material to change out 4” pressure 
reducing valve and related fittings. 
 

021017-1 
C&M Repeater 

Communications 

 
Mobile Repeater 

Installation-Payson 

 
$17,500.00 

 
06-30-17 

 
02-23-17 

 
Expires 

 
This is for installation of mobile repeater, 
ban pass filter, notch filter, antenna and 
associated wirings plus programming of 
radio and mobile repeater for Patrol 
vehicles.. 
 

 
120514 

Service Plus, Inc. 

 

 
Appliance Service and 

Repair 

 
$5,000.00 

 

 
01-01-17 to 12-31-17 

 
02-23-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 3 will serve to extend 
the term of the contract from January 1, 
2017 to December 31, 2018.  Contractor 
will provide the repair and service of 
miscellaneous equipment located at the 
Globe and Payson Sheriff’s Office, Globe 
Posse Building, and Roosevelt Sub-
Station. List of equipment includes but is 
not limited to: ice maker, commercial & 
convention ovens, commercial washers, 
dryers, drinking fountain, boiler system, 
dishwasher, kettle/warmer, evap. cooler, 
walk-in cooler and sinks. 
 

 

 



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 

February 20, 2017 thru February 24, 2017 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

110614-1 
Azteca Glass East 

 

 
Amendment No.2 to extend 

contract term. 

 
$5,000.00 

 
02-04-17 to 02-03-18 

 
02-23-17 

 
Option to renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 will extend the 
contract term for one year from February 
4, 2017 to February 3, 2018. Company 
needed to repair or replace building glass 
in various Gila County buildings in and 
around Globe, Arizona on an On-Call basis  
or as needed basis. 
 

 
022117 

Gila County Rodeo 
Committee 

 

 
Copper Dust Stampede 

Rodeo 

 
$10,000.00 

 
03-30-17 

 
02-23-17 

 
Expires 

 
To assist the Gila County Rodeo 
Committee with the 2017 Copper Dust 
Stampede Rodeo, to be held on March 11th 
and 12th. 

 
Center for Disease 

Detection 

 
Laboratory Testing 

Services 

 
$2,800.00 

 
02-01-17 to 01-31-18 

 
02-23-17 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will provide laboratory testing 
services for the Gila County Health 
Department. The price includes all 
collection devices, shipping boxes, 
postage paid shipping envelopes, and 
testing. All supplies are tracked by the 
contractor’s computer and will 
automatically be shipped to keep the 
department inventory well stocked. 
 

  



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

February 20, 2017 thru February 24, 2017 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

121014-1 
Atomic Pest Control 

 

 
Pest Control Service for 

Northern Gila County 

 
$3,320.00 

 

 
02-10-17 to 02-09-18 

 
02-23-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to 
extend the term of the agreement from 
February 10, 2017 to February 09, 2018. 
Contractor to provide pest control service 
for Northern Gila County Facilities; Star 
Valley Roads Office, Gas Shop, Diesel 
Shop, Administration Bldg, Courthouse 
Complex, Assessors/Recorders Bldg, 
Community Services Bldg, Sheriff’s 
Office/Jail & JP Court Bldg, Other non-
routine on call services such as bee 
removal, etc. 

 
011116 

Anderson Collision 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

increase contract amount. 

 
$593.53 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$4,656.42 

 
01-01-17 to 12-31-17 

 
02-23-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase 
the contract amount by $593.53 due to 
the need for additional parts required for 
the repair. Body work and repairs for 
vehicle B-190 due to accident damage. 
Other vendor provided an incomplete 
quote lacking all required parts for repair. 

 






































































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Update on Recent Activities of Gila Community College 
	Att1_GCC Presentations
	 Item 3.A. - Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO16-00005912 with Atwell
	Att1_Buckhead Mesa Phase 3 Proposal
	Binder1
	Buckhead Phase 3 Proposal
	Buckhead Expansion Budget
	Sheet1

	2016 Rate Sheet_Direct Reimbursable
	Engineering Services
	Surveying Services
	Planning/Landscape Design Services
	Environmental/Ecological Services
	CAD/GIS Services
	Construction Services
	Office:
	Field Equipment:
	Field Materials:
	Miscellaneous:



	Att2_ADSPO16-00005912 State Contract
	Attachment_Response Form I - General Qualifications.pdf
	Attachment_Response Form I- Firms General Qualifications Response Form
	Resumes and Projects
	Resumes
	Resume Balliet
	Resume Petrus
	Resume Smith
	Resume Spring

	Final Projects
	Projects
	Projects2
	Projects3


	Final Signature


	 Item 3.B. - Approval to use State Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane Builders, Inc.
	Att1_17-GilaCounty-0002.00 PriceProposalDetail
	Att2_SummaryofCostsforGeneralEZIQCProjects 17-GilaCounty-0002.00
	Att3_Drawings A1 - A7  2-8-2017
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A1 DEMO
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A2 REMODEL PLAN
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A3 FURN ELECT
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A4 SCHEDULES
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A5 CEILING LIGHTING
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A6 MILLWORK JP
	Courthouse LL CTY ATTY CD 2016 A7 MILLWORK CTY ATTY

	Att4_ADSPO12-013788  Change Order Summary - 1.31.2017
	 Item 4.A. - Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Grant Amendment 2
	Att1_ADHS17-133182 Amendment 2
	Att2_ADHS17-133182 Amendment No. 1
	Att3_ADHS17-133182 Original Contract
	 Item 4.B. - Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board Appointment
	Att1_PSPRS Local Board Member List
	Att2_2-7-17 PSPRS Local Board Meeting Agenda
	Att3_2-7-17 PSPRS Local Board Draft Minutes
	 Item 4.C. - Pleasant Valley Fire District Governing Board Appointment
	Att1_Arizona Revised Statute 48-1012
	Att2_Loyaly Oath of Office Peter Elenius
	Att3_Meeting Minutes 12-14-2016
	Att4_Meeting Agenda 12-14-2016
	Att5_Karol Clark Resignation Letter
	Att6_Meeting Agenda 1-18-2017
	Att7_Meeting Minutes 1-18-2017
	 Item 4.D. - Financial and statistical reports for January 2017
	Att1_January 2017 report
	PaysonJP Jan-2017.pdf
	jp0404 jan 17

	 Item 4.E. - Monthly Report for February 2017
	Att1_Monthly Report for February 2017
	 Item 4.F. - Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for February 2017
	Att1_February 2017
	 Item 4.G. - Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for February 2017
	Att1_February Monthly Report
	 Item 4.H. - February 2017
	Att1_Clerk's Report February 2017
	 Item 4.I. - February 2017
	Att1_Recorder's February 2017 Monthly Report
	 Item 4.J. - March 7, 2017
	Att1_03-07-17 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.K. - Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 02-17-17 and 02-24-17.
	Att1_Report for County Manager approved contracts under $50,000 for weeks ending 02-17-17, and 02-24-17
	Att2_Contract No. 13412-S with Norment Security Group
	Att3_State Contract No. ADSPO13-043962 with SD Crane
	Att4_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 013015-2
	Att5_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 112916
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 020317 with Kino Floors and Interiors, LLC
	Att7_Service Agreement No. 020417 with AAA Lock Service
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 021317 with Steven Enterprises, Inc.
	Att9_Amendment No 1 to Service Agreement No. 120816
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 021017-1 with CandM Communications
	Att11_Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No.  120514
	Att12_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 110614-1
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 022117 with Gila County Rodeo Committee
	Att14_Agreement with Center for Disease Detection, LLC
	Att15_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 121014-1
	Att16_Amendment No. 1 to  Service Agreement No. 011116

